Notes to Financial Statements

Bt % R R P RE

31 March 2006
—EERFE=A=1+—H

1. Corporate Information

Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is located at Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon House, Taikoo
Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal activities:
e  distribution of general information technology (“IT”) products
e distribution of systems products

e provision of systems integration, applications software development,
consultancy and training, etc..

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2006. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. This method involves allocating the cost of the
business combinations to the fair value of the assets acquired, and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and
net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and are adopted for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cast Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment Reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

HKAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets and

Amendment Financial Liabilities

HKAS 40 Investment Property

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-depreciated

Assets
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs (cont’d)
The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23, 27, 28, 31, 33,
37, 38, 40 and HK(SIC)-Int 21 has had no material impact on the accounting
policies of the Group and the Company and the methods of computation in the
Group’s and the Company’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests on the face of the
consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and other disclosures. In addition, in prior years,
the Group’s share of tax attributable to associates was presented as a component
of the Group’s total tax charge/(credit) in the consolidated income statement. Upon
the adoption of HKAS 1, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of
associates and jointly-controlled entities is presented net of the Group’s share of
tax attributable to associates and jointly-controlled entities.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties and affected the Group’s
related party disclosures.

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised as follows:

(@) HKAS 17 — Leases
In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own use were stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s leasehold interest in land and buildings
is separated into leasehold land and leasehold buildings. The Group’s leasehold
land is classified as an operating lease, because the title of the land is not expected
to pass to the Group by the end of the lease term, and is reclassified from property,
plant and equipment to prepaid land premiums, while leasehold buildings continue
to be classified as part of property, plant and equipment. Prepaid land premiums
for land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease term. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

This change in accounting policy has had no effect on the consolidated income
statement and retained profits. The comparative amounts in the consolidated
balance sheet for the year ended 31 March 2005 have been restated to reflect the
reclassification of the leasehold land.
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs (cont’d)

(b) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments

In prior years, the Group classified its investments in equity securities as long term
investments, which were held for non-trading purposes and were stated at their
cost less any impairment losses on individual basis. Upon the adoption of HKAS 39,
these securities held by the Group at 1 April 2005 are designated as available-for-
sale investments under the transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and should be stated
at fair value in the balance sheet, except for certain available-for-sale investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, when they are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

Since the Group’s available-for-sale investments do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and their fair values cannot be reliably measured, they
are stated at cost less any impairment losses under HKAS 39. The adoption of
HKAS 39 has not resulted in any change in the measurement of these equity
securities.

() HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-based payment
transactions in which employees (including directors) were granted share options
over shares in the Company were required until such options were exercised by
employees, at which time the share capital and share premium were credited with
the proceeds received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees (including directors) render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”),
the cost of the equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which the instruments are granted.

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is the recognition of the cost of these
transactions and a corresponding entry to equity for employee share options. The
revised accounting policy for share-based payment transactions is described in
more detail in note 2.5 “Summary of significant accounting policies” below.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 under which the
new measurement policies have not been applied to (i) options granted to
employees on or before 7 November 2002; and (i) options granted to employees
after 7 November 2002 but which had vested before 1 April 2005.

The effects of adopting HKFRS 2 in the Group’s share options granted to employees
after 7 November 2002 but had not vested on 1 April 2005 are summarised in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. Comparative amounts have been restated in
accordance with HKFRS 2.
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised HKFRSs (cont’d)

(d) HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and HKAS 36 — Impairment of
Assets

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was capitalised and amortised on

the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life and was subject to impairment

testing when there was any indication of impairment.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36 has resulted in the Group ceasing annual
goodwill amortisation and commencing testing for impairment at the cash-
generating unit level annually (or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired).

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have required the Group to eliminate at 1
April 2005 the carrying amounts of accumulated amortisation with a corresponding
adjustment to the cost of goodwill.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, comparative
amounts have not been restated.

() HKFRS 5 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

HKFRS 5 requires non-current assets classified as held for sale and the liabilities

directly associated with those assets to be presented separately in the consolidated

balance sheet. Such assets are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and

the fair value less costs to sell and are not depreciated. HKFRS 5 had no material

effect on the Group and is applied prospectively.
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2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements. Unless otherwise
stated, these HKFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Amendment
HKAS 19 Amendment

HKAS 21 Amendment
HKAS 39 Amendment

HKAS 39 Amendment

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4
Amendments

HKFRSs 1 & 6
Amendments

HKFRS 6

HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4

HK(FRIC)-Int 5

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6

HK(FRIC)-Int 7

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

Digital China Annual Report 05/06

Capital Disclosures

Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and
Disclosures

Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast
Intragroup Transactions

The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral

Resources
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds

Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific
Market — Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment
Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS
29 - Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of embedded derivatives
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2.3 Impact of Issued but not yet Effective HKFRSs (cont’d)

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007. The revised standard will affect the disclosures about qualitative
information about the Group’s objective, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards as capital; and
compliance with any capital requirements and the consequences of any non-
compliance.

HKFRS 7 incorporates the disclosure requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial
instruments. This HKFRS shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding financial guarantee
contracts, financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised at fair value and
are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.

The HKAS 19 Amendment, HKAS 39 Amendment regarding cash flow hedge
accounting of forecast intragroup transactions, HKFRSs 1 and 6 Amendments,
HKFRS 6, HK(IFRIC)-Int 5, HK(IFRIC)-Int 6 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 do not apply to the
activities of the Group. HK(IFRIC)-Int 6, HK(IFRIC)-Int 7, HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 and HK
(IFRIC)-Int 9 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December
2005, 1 March 2006, 1 May 2006 and 1 June 2006, respectively.

The HKAS 21 Amendment prescribes the accounting treatment on the recognition
of exchange differences in respect of a net investment in foreign operations.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption of the
pronouncements listed above will not have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements in the period of initial application.
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2.4 Summary of the Impact of Changes in Accounting Policies 24 ENHEEH 2 FEHNE
(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) HHmAEEABRZFE
Effect of adopting
RnERERZHE
At 1 April 2005 HKASs 32*
HKAS 17+ and 39* HKFRS 2
Change in
Prepaid classification Equity-settled
Effect of new policies land of equity share option
(Increase/(decrease)) premiums investments arrangements Total
—EEREMNA—A &S Eg 8| B
£l F32* % Bi TSRS
EATH 3955~ AR 25k
BRI 2 faft BRI E AR ZAF 2
&/ CRd)) TiME DEZEE BERRAE L B it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT BT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment 473 = & %4& (15,944) = = (15,944)
Prepaid land premiums B S 15,944 - - 15,944
Available-for-sale equity AN E 2 RN E
investments - 30,545 - 30,545
Long term investments KA E - (30,545) - (30,545)
Equity =
Employee share-based Rm = HEE 2
compensation reserve < Rt - - 37,595 37,595
Retained profits IREE &= 7 - - (37,595) (37,595)
*  Adjustment/presentation taken effect prospectively from 1 April 2005 * R-TTRFHA—ARERZARE 27
#  Adjustments/presentation taken effect retrospectively ¥ BWERZAE 25
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2.4 Summary of the Impact of Changes in Accounting Policies (cont’d)
(@) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (cont’d)

24 BIBREHZTEME (B)

(@

HAEEREBRZVE(B)

Effect of adopting
RMERENZHE

At 31 March 2006 HKASs 32
HKAS 17 and 39 HKFRS 2 HKFRS 3
Change in Discontinuation
Prepaid classification  Equity-settled of
Effect of new policies land of equity share option amortisation
(Increase/(decrease)) premiums investments  arrangements of goodwill Total
—EEAF=A=1+—H BE B8 B BB
BRI ZERI5E32 MR MRS
FE175R K395 ERIFE 255 R 35
HBERNTE AN ERRE URGOIGTZ #1E
(3, GR2)) TS PEZEE BRETH Gk & st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T BET T
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment N N ] (13,832) = = = (13,832)
Prepaid land premiums B LS 13,485 - - - 13,485
Available-for-sale equity A E 2R E
investments - 32,944 - - 32,944
Long term investments RARE - (32,944) - - (32,944)
Goodwill BES - - - 1,786 1,786
Prepayments, deposits and AR EE R EA
other receivables e IR 347 = = = 347
1,786
Equity =
Employee share-based AR 1EE 2
compensation reserve Bl <& &1 - - 50,458 = 50,458
Retained profits {REBE A - - (50,458) 1,786 (48,672)
1,786
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2.4 Summary of the Impact of Changes in Accounting Policies (cont’d)
(b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 April 2004 and 1 April 2005

24 BIBREHTEME (B)
(b) HR=—ZZNFNA-—HR=-ZZHFNA—

AERGE s E

Effect of new policy
(Increase/(decrease))

BRI

Effect of adopting
RaEREAzE

HKFRS 2
Equity-settled share
option arrangements

BRUBRELERE2R

(35 GRi2)) LRGBSz BRERHE
HK$’000
BT T

1 April 2004 —TENEA—H

Employee share-based compensation reserve PARR (A 32 <1 1E B 2 Bl & (1 13,526

Retained profits IREB & A (13,526)

1 April 2005 —EERFMA—H

Employee share-based compensation reserve AR (A 32 <1 1E B 2 Bl & 1 37,595

Retained profits IREB & A (37,595)

72
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2.4 Summary of the Impact of Changes in Accounting Policies (cont’d)
(c) Effect on the consolidated income statement for the years ended 31

March 2005 and 2006

24 BIBREHTEME (B)

) HBE—EBRRFER-_BEAF=A=+—H

LFERSRERZEE

Effect of adopting

BREBER S
HKAS 1 HKFRS 2 HKFRS 3
Share of post-tax Equity-settled Discontinuation of
profits and share option amortisation
Effect of new policies losses of associates arrangements of goodwill Total
BB BEMK BERBK
ZRIE1% R REER
FERBE AT 2% 35K
ZBRBIERF DRHB A2 RIEEE
HBERNEE kEE B ER ey st
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BT T BET T
Year ended 31 March 2006 BE-ZZARF
ZHA=t+—HLEEFE
Increase in selling and distribution costs SHE R SHAC A N - (1,688) - (1,688)
Increase in administrative expenses 1TIERE LN - (11,062) - (11,062)
Decrease/(increase) in other operating Hih & E&E R FE
expenses, net L (3 hn) - (113) 1,786 1,673
Decrease in share of profits and losses e E AR
of associates i ) Kz S 4R R (877) - - (3877)
Decrease in tax TIER 377 - - 377
Total increase/(decrease) in profit wmAEan CRid) #a%s - (12,863) 1,786 (11,077)
Increase/(decrease) in basic earnings EAGRAFM CRD)
per share - (1.49) HK centsi#fll  0.21 HK centsi&{ll (1.28) HK centsi&l
Increase/(decrease) in diluted earnings EEERAFIEM (Rd)
per share - (1.49) HK centsi#&fll  0.21 HK centsi&{lll (1.28) HK centsi&l
Year ended 31 March 2005 BE-_ZZIF
ZA=t+—HLEFE
Increase in selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA A N = (3,682) = (3,682)
Increase in administrative expenses TTERE R M - (20,159) - (20,159)
Increase in other operating expenses, net  H{th & 18  F/F 5812 1 = (228) = (228)
Decrease in share of profits and losses FE(EERE R ElZ
of associates i ) K2 S 4R R (79) = = (79)
Decrease in tax TIER 79 - - 79
Total decrease in profit e MR 4B FR - (24,069) = (24,069)
Decrease in basic earnings per share ERGRAEFRD - (2.80) HK centsi# Il - (2.80) HK cents/# Ll

Decrease in diluted earnings per share

EHERBTIRD

(2.79) HK centsi# il -

(2.79) HK centsi# Il

HINEHE F3R 05/06
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the Company
controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income statement to the
extent of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint venture

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture company
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other parties have an
interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital
contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration of the joint venture and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and
losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets
are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the
joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral control, but
has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds,
directly or indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint venture company’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise significant influence over the
joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group
holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to joint control, resulting
in none of the participating parties having unilateral control over the economic
activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled
entities is included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-controlled entities are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in
which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is
included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as
an asset, initially measured at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Goodwill (cont’d)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

e represents the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes; and

e isnotlarger than a segment based on either the Group’s primary or the Group’s
secondary reporting format determined in accordance with HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets,
investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Impairment of assets (cont’d)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, (i) controls,
is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or its
parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or
(d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(9 the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
the Group, or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and machinery is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a
replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Over the lease terms or 2% to 5%, whichever
is shorter

Over the lease terms or 20% to 33%, whichever
is shorter

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and

each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other fixed assets under
construction or installation, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and testing
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or investment properties
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the leasehold
interest under an operating lease for property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are
recognised in the income statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a self-constructed
investment property, any difference between the fair value of the property at the
completion date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and
its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment properties, deferred
tax assets and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet
date.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention
to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised using the unit of sales method, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production, and are limited to an amortisation
period of two years.

Digital China Annual Report 05/06

25 TEEBERME (B)
FERENFRBDEER HEAR
HIERBEE RN EER 2 IREERERE—TALE
R 5 EE BRHEE AR M5B RFE S 1
BER T ZEERE EARI R E AR HE
WRARHEZSEEXHEAR 2 — R BRI
BR BERENE 2B RMBEGS-

DEAREFEIRRBEERLERR REME B
ERTREERMFEERIN) REREEREAFEE
W ERA 2 BE SR E -

BI.EE (BEKRM)

B EEZ A ERFHAMMESERIER FHE
Rz \ A ENAHERLBEF BAEE WNEIR
BB EERRHBREREL G ERET
ERFHRER 2B EE 2 BHFHN#HTEED
REEERBREFE AR —R-

BN TN
PTARRFUR AR E AR B R kR

ETRENERIRBRELZBRERTIERT
FRERNMCRIEIE : AR E A EE TN 2R BV A E
PMEE RS ERSERN AT AEEE BT
PZIAERE WheE AN EZREE ZREER
BRI E BN e R B 2 AT RERE: Rk
ERARNERBBET A SFHFAEMBRAS LT
HeaRSEENZEMPEERDNEEBBIIIES
o

ERERBERATHZRARERERRIIR X EE
BIEmMIR AR EE 2 BRIRHE AR H AR
PR E I F B 25



2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (cont’d)

Licences

Licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain
with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is the
lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are included in non-
current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005:

The Group classified its equity investments, other than subsidiaries, associates
and jointly-controlled entities, as long term investments.

Long term investments
Long term investments are non-trading investments in unlisted equity securities
intended to be held for a continuing strategic or on a long term basis.

Unlisted equity securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an
individual investment basis. When a decline in the fair value of a security below its
carrying amount has occurred, unless there is evidence that the decline is
temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced to its fair value, as
estimated by the directors. The amount of the impairment is charged to the income
statement for the period in which it arises. When the circumstances and events
which led to the impairment in value cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence
that the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the
amount of the impairment previously charged is credited to the income statement
to the extent of the amount previously charged.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Investments and other financial assets (cont’d)
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as either loans and
receivables, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs. The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets in unlisted
equity securities that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is included in the income statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably measured
because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant
for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Digital China Annual Report 05/06

25 TEEBERME (B)
BRENEMEMEE (B)
BARBE-ZEZAF=A=+—HLEFE:

REEEGHERNEISRMATE L EMEEAN DR
ERFEEFEXAHEEZ SREE (HE8) -
BEENBRERR AR FEEFTE MAIFRAF
EBEFABRSZKENRERBIERZIHAFTE A
SENERERRETESREE 2N B WERF
MEEZBATREEABRGE RSN EEED

A REBEZSREEMNR S A (AIAREE Az
BEZEEZ R TAER —REBEIRRR—R
MSRERBIE—EMRARNEEZEREESR

==,

=

V=099 ¢7¢%]

ERRERFIEAEE EFE XA REN BEER
MEPEREZIINTESREE ZSEERAER
B E LB AT IR - FE R R B GIE B 4R 1
R LB ESGE TR E A 2 ABRE R
MR

RHEC EHAE

AHHEZ SREERNIF LTSRS IFTE
EREE DHAHHERL I ERERRELRFIR
ZERMEBE-NRERR AIRBEZSREETIZA
FEEFE REAERELR 2 —EEBOEKERN
KHER EEZIEADRRILHER AEEZRECK
EBERLBRRERL ERATNESTARTZ&
B ANz R Ao

HREEZREMS A A TEEZHFT#EFE
BEANAEE () EFFEAFEERREA R
b R EAA BB EA AT AR 2 ZIRMET ABUE
AR ST EIF E TR EE S AT EER ILE
B TR A BAEREIR KT ke



2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Investments and other financial assets (cont’d)

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006: (cont’d)

Fair value

For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined using
valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006)
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively assessed for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised
cost at the reversal date.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006) (cont’d)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is
transferred from equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006)
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006)
(cont’d)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option
(including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option
(including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair
value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the
lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration
received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable to the year ended 31 March
2006)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (applicable to the year ended 31
March 2006)

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts
to manage its risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gain or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current
forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Contract accounting

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and appropriate amounts
from variation orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred
comprise equipment and material costs, subcontracting costs, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the proportion of work completed to date to
the estimated total work of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by
management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from
contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised

profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and bank balances comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income statement or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same
or a different period, directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at
the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable

right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to
the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

(b) contract revenue, on the percentage of completion basis, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Contract accounting” above;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in
note 33. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of
the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions (cont’d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards
where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense
is recognised as if the terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the
date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in
the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-
settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on 1 April 2005 and to those granted
on or after 1 April 2005.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are partially refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland of the
People’s Republic of China (“Mainland China”) are required to participate in central
pension schemes operated by the local municipal government. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the participating employees’ salaries and are
charged to the income statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.5 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in a separate component of equity, the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised
in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made
the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property
portfolio. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties
The Group determined whether a property qualifies as an investment property
and has developed criteria in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows largely independently
of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment assessment for trade receivables

The policy for impairment assessment for trade receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of trade receivables and on
the judgement of management. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional impairment may be required.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the aging analysis of inventories of the Group at each balance
sheet date, and makes provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified that are no longer suitable for sale. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at each
balance sheet date and makes provision for obsolete items.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis.
This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. More details are given in note 18 to the financial statements.

Impairment of intangible assets — deferred development costs

The Group determines whether an intangible asset is impaired where an indication
of impairment exists. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the intangible
asset. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the intangible asset and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred tax assets based on the enacted
or substantially enacted tax rates and laws and best knowledge of profit projections
of the Group for coming years during which the deferred tax assets are expected
to be utilised. Management reviews the assumptions and profit projections at
each balance sheet date.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various regions. As a result of the fact that
certain matters relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed by the local
tax bureau, objective estimates and judgments based on currently enacted tax
laws, regulations and other related polices are required in determining the provision
of income taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters are
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact the income
tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences realise.

4. Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary segment reporting
basis, by business segment. In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers,
and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No
geographical segment information is presented as over 90% of the Group’s
customers and operations are located in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed separately
according to the nature of their operations and the products and services they
provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of the other business segments. Summary details of the
business segments are as follows:

(@) the “Distribution” segment engages in the distribution of general IT products
which consist of notebook computers, desktop computers, PC servers, data
projectors, peripherals, accessories and consumer IT products;

(b) the “Systems” segment engages in the distribution of systems products which
consist of Unix servers, networking products, storage products and packaged
software, as well as the provision of related value-added services; and

(c) the “Services” segment engages in the provision of systems integration,
applications software development, consultancy and training, etc..
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4. Segment Information (cont’d)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset and liability information
for the Group’s business segments for the years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005:

Bt 35 3R 2= MY &

TREJNAEEHE_ZTFR_TTAF=A=
T HALEFEEBA 2B BN RETEERE

BER:
Group AEE
Distribution Systems Services Consolidated
ik | ES BR7s SE
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
—BRAF —TTAF —BENF _TTHF —BBAF _TTHF -BEAF _TTIF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEF T BT BT T BT BETT BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (E31) (&E3) (&51)
Segment revenue: DEPUA:
Sales to external SHE THIN
customers =FE 11,616,453 8,713,368 5,679,594 4,660,016 2,568,850 2,083,518 19,864,897 15,456,902
Segment gross profit D EBEF 544,729 484,932 506,770 444,797 353,715 253,923 1,405,214 1,183,652
Segment results DEBELE 234,155 208,902 181,192 162,489 50,344 (8,108) 465,691 363,283
Interest income, FLEHA -
unallocated ROFEWA
revenue and gains Rz 92,300 25,298
Unallocated expenses RABEHAS (183,005) (167,072)
Finance costs BEKA (95,851)  (48,226)
Share of profits and BETHREZ
losses of: i N R 1
Jointly-controlled entities HEPE IR - - - - (5,171) - (5,171) =
Associates NG| - - - - (4,383) 2,621 (4,383) 2,621
Profit before tax RRA A1 Vo A 269,581 175,904
Tax THIE (20,970) 6,062
Profit for the year NE 248,611 181,966
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4. Segment Information (cont’d) 4. DEPER(B)
Business segments (cont’d) o E (18)
Group REH
Distribution Systems Services Consolidated
x| AR i%:3 @ZE
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
—ETXRE —ITTHFE ZZBERF ZTTHF CZEETRE —TTHF —EBTXRE —TITAHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T BETT BT BET T BT
Assets: BE:
Segment assets DEPEE 1,889,565 1,387,557 1,587,625 1,476,967 1,221,270 1,063,842 4,698,460 3,928,366
Interests in jointly-controlled  FAFE R
entities ¥R - - - - 24,526 - 24,526 -
Interests in associates RERE QA2 s - - - - 36,453 39,373 36,453 39,373
Unallocated assets AOBEE 1,067,925 919,634
Total assets MEE 5,827,364 4,887,373
Liabilities: afE:
Segment liabilities AEBEE 1,189,546 905,910 826,899 633,819 663,320 580,348 2,679,765 2,120,077
Unallocated liabilities ROFEE 1,341,731 1,178,792
Total liabilities wafE 4,021,496 3,298,869
Other segment information: Htt5#H&EH:
Depreciation of property, L ER =058
plant and equipment REBZITE 7,176 7,825 7,694 7,223 11,002 9,273 25,872 24,321
Unallocated amounts KOS 31,078 32,116
56,950 56,437
Amortisation of intangible EREERE
assets - - 4,893 8,575 2,362 - 7,255 8275
Amortisation of prepaid TEAS T HbFH S 8
land premiums — Ko
— Unallocated 162 417
(Reversal of impairment)/ JEU B SR FRIR
impairment and write-off of CriE#m)
doubtful trade receivables VENI=DNEi6ic! 1,548 (2,970) 23,858 13,310 13,258 18,213 38,664 28,553
(Reversal of provisions)/ RETFTE
provisions and write-off of (Bfssm)
obsolete inventories B R e 876 4,060 (25,203) 7,631 1,335 7,546 (22,992) 19,237
Impairment of intangible EFEERE
assets - - 12,475 4,782 7,306 1,755 19,781 6,537
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the invoiced value of
goods sold and services rendered to customers, net of business tax, value-added
tax and government surcharges, and after allowances for goods returned and
trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

58

WA~ Bt A R W2

WATRBAREE 2 SR8 FREFPHEEm&iEH
AR15 2 BRE R EXRR BERRBTEE AR

)

RE

HESHT) -

WA EA A Rz o AT T -

98

Group
AEE
2006 2005
S N —TTns
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B e BET T BT T
Revenue PN 19,864,897 15,456,902
Other income Higlr A
Government grants (Note) BTl (B sE) 26,084 16,150
Bank interest income HRITAEUA 4,468 3,118
Gross rental income @RS UA 1,246 -
Others EAh 9,045 10,166
40,843 29,434
Gains Wz
Fair value gains on investment properties REWMEZ AT EEYES 16 7,368 —
Gain on disposal of non-current assets PERBHEZIERBEE
classified as held for sale 6 15 3,196 —
Gain on forward foreign exchange contracts REBIMNES 892 Wam 2,979 16,073
Foreign exchange differences, net PEH FERR 64,796 2,271
Gain on disposal of intangible assets BB B A EWE 3,487 -
81,826 18,344
122,669 47,778
Note: Various government grants have been received for the sale of self-developed software Mizt: AEEEHHEPEARINE ([HE]) BHBEPFIRT

approved by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) tax authority, the development of
software in Mainland China, and the investment in specific provinces in Mainland China.
The government grants received for the investment in specific provinces in Mainland China
were recognised upon the receipt of the grants, whereas that received for the sale of self-
developed software and the development of software in Mainland China were recognised
upon the sale of approved self-developed software and completion of the development of
the related software, respectively. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these grants.
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6. Total Operating Expenses

An analysis of total operating expenses by nature is as follows:

6. HEBEMAE

RIBFBRME 2 £ EEREBEANNAT:

Group

rEE
2006 2005
—BBAREF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(E31)
Selling expenses HEZEHRH 106,787 100,401
Promotion and advertising expenses HENSEER 97,241 89,928

Staff costs included in operating expenses FIRNEERA 2 BITRA

(including directors’ remuneration) (BRESH) 559,136 440,245
Other expenses HEEH 389,733 379,347
1,152,897 1,009,921
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7. Profit Before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. BRBADGEF

AEE 2 BBADEN &M, GEA) :

2006 2005
—BBAREF —TTHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B e BET T BT IT
(Restated)
(&31)
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEERA 18,105,956 14,016,378
Depreciation e 15 56,950 56,437
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums TES T3 AE S B S 17 162 417
Goodwill: Bk E 18
Amortisation for the year* VNG5 - 1,661
Impairment arising during the year* REZRIE" 12,894 =
12,894 1,661
Research and development costs 9t R B AR 28,257 26,172
Amortisation of intangible assets** T A B 19 7,255 3,575
Impairment of intangible assets* EEERE 19 19,781 6,537
Minimum lease payments under operating leases THIRIEFZ
in respect of land and buildings =IELEHERE 45,060 47 154
Auditors’ remuneration = EREM BN & 3,150 2,990
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EERAAZ (B
remuneration (note 9)): EEME (FFF9)) :
Wages and salaries IERF® 522,576 391,075
Equity-settled share option expenses VARG (7 2 A+ 2 B AR M Bl =2 12,863 24,069
Pension scheme contributions*** RIRE FTEI 31,961 24,111
Other benefits Hram| 72,933 56,859
640,333 496,114
(Reversal of provisions)/provisions and write-off PRETE (BERR)
of obsolete inventories* P45 R M sH (22,992) 19,237
Write-off of other receivables* H i i U FRIE i 8 6,828 =
Impairment and write-off of doubtful FEUE 5 IR R IRRE
trade receivables* &=l 38,664 28,553
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and HEME- BEREEL
equipment &8 2,313 2,430
Gross rental income S UA (1,246) —
Fair value gains on investment properties wEYFE 2 A EEKE 16 (7,368) -
Foreign exchange differences, net EH FERR (64,796) (2,271)
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7. Profit Before Tax (cont’d)

*  The amortisation and impairment of goodwill, the (reversal of provisions)/
provisions and write-off of obsolete inventories, the write-off of other
receivables, the impairment and write-off of doubtful trade receivables and
impairment of intangible assets are included in “Other operating expenses,
net” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

** The amortisation of intangible assets is included in “Cost of sales” on the face
of the consolidated income statement.

At 31 March 2006, the Group had no material forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2005: Nil).

8. Finance Costs

*k

BrBiATE N (&)

BERHELRE REFE BEER) BER
MsH - Eo A FEUGRIR M  FEUE S IR SR IRIRE
K kB EERECFT AGERERTZ
(A2 E & AR e

EEEHHED T AGARBERT 2 [HEK
KA

R-ZETRNFZA=+—H AEEWEEARA
HIVRARREE 2 BIREF BT Z BOE U TR
(CETRE E).

BB R

Group
AEW
2006 2005
S N —TEns
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank and other borrowings SRIT R EME KT S 62,312 23,734
Interest on discounted bills EERBEREEFE 33,539 24,492
95,851 48,226
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9. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

9. EE=M=

REEEMSRZMERARES ETHRR ([ LW
FAN) REERREHIEE161 6 EE 2 N FEE R

TR

Group

AEE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —TTRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
(Restated)
(E351)
Fees vk 450 375

Other emoluments: B :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREREMER 9,987 8,885
Performance related bonuses B SRIRBNA 2 TEAT 8,200 5,318
Employee share option benefits (Note) & B RERRER R (Fish) 2,744 4,582
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIE R 48 148
20,979 18,933
21,429 19,308

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were as
follows:

(@) BIFHTES

AEER EXNTFELIFNTEEZRSHIIT:

2006 2005

S N —TEns

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Mr. Leung Pak To, Francis 2IREEEAE 150 150
Professor Wu Jinglian R R 150 150
Mr. Hu Zhao Guang IR E S 150 75
450 S
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There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive
directors during the year (2005: Nil).
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9. Directors’ Remuneration (cont’d)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

9.

E=me (B)
(b) BITESERIHITES

Salaries,
allowances Performance Employee Pension
and benefits related share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
E2
h=3:7 == ERE
REY BERBHH B st e
we BEFI ZIEAL &R R Fet o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BET T
(Note) (Fff&E)
2006 —BEAF
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Li Qin =EEE - 2,775 2,870 670 - 6,315
Mr. Guo Wei ME&E - 3,638 3,000 1,091 16 7,745
Mr. Zeng Maochao BB A - 817 300 - - 1,117
Mr. Lin Yang VNPt - 1,783 1,627 546 16 3,972
Mr. Hua Zhinian ENF A - 974 403 437 16 1,830
- 9,987 8,200 2,744 48 20,979
Non-executive director: IEMITES:
Mr. William O. Grabe William O. Grabe%t 4 - - - - - -
- 9,987 8,200 2,744 48 20,979
2005 —ETRF
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Li Qin THEE - 2,446 2,613 815 57 5,931
Mr. Guo Wei A& E - 3,216 1,500 1,983 63 6,762
Mr. Zeng Maochao SRR A = 708 = = = 708
Mr. Lin Yang PN b - 1,610 750 991 14 3,365
Mr. Hua Zhinian ENF A - 905 455 793 14 2,167
- 8,885 5,318 4,582 148 18,933
Non-executive director: EMITES:
Mr. William O. Grabe William O. GrabeZt 4 - - - - - -
- 8,885 5,318 4,582 148 18,933

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.

Note: No share options (2005: 2,500,000 share options were granted) were granted to the directors
during the year in respect of their services to the Group under the share option schemes of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. The
employee share option benefits represent the fair value at the grant date of the share options
in previous years amortised to the income statement during the year, disregarding if there
is a grant of share options during the year.

E=UENAFREANRLMELFR B REEAE 2

g7

fiE:

Fo

AEERN AEREFARNEERAREMER FTARE

FERRAETEIIE T~ 2 FBARHE i — P RF B RN A TS SRR T
FE33 (=TT R F JEHK H2,500,0001D B A AE) < LABR D
M EEMSENSENTFEBERENZEERDN
ATEBEARNFENRZENEBE ThEEERERS
RAFEAE T
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10. REFEUES
AEEzRSHFAEERENS (CEERF: =4
(B7)) B WEZMEF BN _EXHEIR -
T—% (ZZETRF M4 (BY)) FEEZH&=#HE
BARFE e FIEHAMT :

10. Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2005: three (restated))
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining one (2005: two (restated)) non-director, highest
paid employee for the year are as follows:

Group

REM
2006 2005
S N —TTns
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&31)
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYET 279 564
Performance related bonuses EAFR IR AN 2 TEAT 336 237
Employee share option benefits (Note) & B EREA (M) 1,128 4,091
Pension scheme contributions RN FTEIER 16 27
1,759 4,919

tilissHFEEREZMEBELT:

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees
EEA"
2006 2005
ZEEXRE —ZTThHF
(Restated)
(&%)
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 751,500,001 7T 2% %2,000,0007T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 712,000,001 7T 2 #%#2,500,0007T - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 712 500,001 7T 28 #3,000,0007T - 1
1 2
Note: The employee share option benefits represent the fair value at the grant date of the share e AR AT E0 1R B S 48 I R IR LA F/E B AR MR

B ANATFEERANFEE SR N Tme BEiE
RERKRFEANRL-

options in previous years amortised to the income statement during the year, disregarding
if there is a grant of share options during the year.
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11. Tax 11. HE\
2006 2005
—BBAREF e
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T T T
(Restated)
(&)

Group: REE:

Current — PRC REEF—HEH 23,757 4,910
Deferred (note 25) IERE (Mi3E25) (2,787) (10,972)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year ANEEFBALH (Fi) A5t 20,970 (6,062)

PRC corporate income tax represents tax charged on the estimated
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. In general, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate of
33% except for certain subsidiaries which are entitled to tax holidays and
preferential tax rates.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or had tax losses brought
forward from prior years to set off assessable profits for the years ended 31
March 2005 and 2006.

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to approximately
HK$377,000 (2005: HK$79,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses of
associates” on the face of the consolidated income statement. PRC corporate
income tax has been provided at the rate of 33% on the estimated assessable
profits of the PRC associates for the years ended 31 March 2005 and 2006.

(@)

FEMCEMEHIERASET RN B AR A5
FERBRMABUB 2 RIB-BRE THEBARZES
SR RBEEBIN NEE 2 T B E AR —
RIBANTHE R 1333% 2 H B E 1S -

HRAEEEBE_TTAFR_TTRF=A
=t BLEFEABEERBELMGERTR
M IR A B B EFE ] R R TOm A 2 TR
B8 RAWEAEENSHIEL B RE-

FE( B & A R R B BB #E877,000T (=2 F
FF:B#ET9,0007T) ' Bt ASRA RS R 2 [1E
(B E AR R ER ] BT R R EEATEH
REEHE ST RER-_TTAF=A=1
— B LA B A R 2 (T FE R RS AR
33% 2 Bl A{E L -
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11. Tax (cont’d)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to the profit/(loss) before tax
using the statutory rates for the countries in which the Company, its subsidiaries,
jointly-controlled entities and associates are domiciled to the tax expense/(credit)
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

11. HIE (8)

RN T EKTE AT R % K H R A )
WEH%Zﬁﬂ,‘f&%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁu/ﬁﬂ /(B18) 2/
ﬁﬁﬁ/%m ) ERERREFEIHBESH
(Biz) HiR - ARGEAT R (BAER R) BB =
RN :

Group - 2006 REE-—FTRF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
] B A B #gt
HK$’000 % HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

BT T B

BETRT Bt

BETT B

Profit before tax

B A5 Bt A1)

57,148

212,433

269,581

Tax at the applicable tax rate

REAMEGE 2 HE

10,001 17.5

Lower tax rate for specific HFEA MM

provinces or local authority e E B AR R - -
Profits and losses attributable ~ FRI1ZEHIB 3 K%

to jointly-controlled entities /NG ey

and associates i M) K 58 - =
Tax effect of unused tax losses ~ ARFERZ KB FHTHIE

not recognised EiE 2 B2 194 0.3
Income not subject to tax BRI Z A (207) (0.3)
Expenses not deductible for tax A 1% 2 sz 561 1.0
Profit not subject to tax AR m (10,549)  (18.5)
Tax losses utilised from MABEHRE

previous periods TIAEE = =

70,103 33.0

(71,645)  (33.7)

3,153 5
9,179 4.3

(483) (0.2)
12,968 6.1

(2,305) (1.1)

80,104 20.7

(71,645)  (26.6)

3,153 1.2
9,373 3.5
(690) (0.2)
13,529 5.0

(10,549) (3.9)

(2,305)  (0.9)

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

BAKEERRERGE
ZBR

20,970 9

20,970 7.8
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11. Tax (cont’d)
Group - 2005

11, T (&)
AEE-—FTTHF

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB A B K e st
HK$'000 % HK$’000 % HK$000 %
BT T Baott BT T ERasd AT T Bt
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&31) (&31)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBIATE R, (E5H) 315,690 (139,786) 175,904
Tax at the applicable tax rate RERTEAE 2 HIA 55,246 17.5 (46,129)  33.0 9,117 5.2
Lower tax rate for specific BEA M
provinces or local authority HERAEE T = - - 40,880  (29.2) 40,880 23.2
Profits and losses attributable B2 A &) fE{h i A
to associates N EE - - (915) 0.7 (915) (0.5)
Tax effect of unused tax losses ~ RIER Z A E)AFHIE
not recognised EiE R E 834 0.3 4,548 (3.3) 5,382 3.1
Income not subject to tax EERBLZ A (1,318) (0.4) (5,442) 3.9 (6,760) (3.8)
Expenses not deductible for tax A 1% 2 Fi sz 805 0.2 9,715 (7.0) 10,520 6.0
Profit not subject to tax IR R Z (55,567)  (17.6) = = (55,567)  (31.6)
Tax losses utilised from MABEHR
previous periods THIEEs 1B - - (8,719) 6.2 (8,719) (5.0)
Tax credit at the Group’s RAE B ERREPR
effective rate FrEZ RS - - (6,062) 4.3 (6,062) (3.4)

12. Profit From Ordinary Activities Attributable to Equity Holders of the

Parent

The profit from ordinary activities attributable to equity holders of the parent for
the year ended 31 March 2006 dealt with in the financial statements of the Company

was HK$91,840,000 (2005: HK$160,964,000 (restated)) (note 34(b)).

12. BATRREMBEEL 2EF

HE-EZE

NEZAZ T BHILEEBARATTE

MARZHRBREEMRB EEB 2 HF ALK
91,840,0007T (ZZZ R F : #5%160,964,0007T (&
H1)) (KisE34(b)) °

M EEE FIR 05/06
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13. Dividends

13. RE

2006 2005
S —TTaf
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Proposed final dividend — 10.00 HK cents FER AN B S —
(2005: 8.53 HK cents) per ordinary share H&EBAR10.008(L (ZZEZHEF:8.538(l) 86,693 73,465

108

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

14. Earnings Per Share Attributable to Ordinary Equity Holders of the
Parent

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for the

year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of approximately

HK$251,917,000 (2005: HK$186,236,000 (restated)), and the weighted average

of 862,916,065 (2005: 860,609,008) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on the profit for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of approximately
HK$251,917,000 (2005: HK$186,236,000 (restated)) and 866,515,404 (2005:
863,050,123) ordinary shares, which was the weighted average of 862,916,065
(2005: 860,609,008) ordinary shares in issue during the year, and the weighted
average of 3,599,339 (2005: 2,441,115) ordinary shares deemed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all the outstanding share
options during the year.
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14. BARERARBRREGEESREF
EAREREFTHIZE AR T ERREEGA
ERSERAERE251,917,0007T (ZBEERE B
186,236,0007T (%) ) ' ARRAFEAN 2B 3
1T 2 19 20862,916,0650% (—Z T Z A 4F:
860,609,0080%) 5T & -

HEEERAMNDIZRT QAT B RREEAR
ERSEAERE251,917,0007T (ZBEERE B
186,236,0007T (%)) ) 866,515,404 % & @A% (=
ZTHF:863,050,123%) s+ & RN EE BRA
FEANZBETERK 2 NETFEE862,916,0650%
(ZZZ R :860,609,0080%) ' A RBRENAEEZN
2T MARITE 2 BB R AR TE R A E &
(3T B 2 INHE T 19 £03,599,330% (—F T H
F:2,441,1150%) Z 4&F0-




15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group

15. ME-BERRE
REE

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Office Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
AELH AR WAZE 3=
<L £ £33 %5 BE I @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T T T BT T BT T
31 March 2006 —EEXRF=A=+—H
At 1 April 2005: R-ZZETERFMHA—A:
Cost RAE 159,462 42,865 259,505 24,577 172,423 658,832
Accumulated depreciation RatieE (9,168) (24,081) (129,282) (17,016) - (179,547)
Net carrying amount IR EFE 150,294 18,784 130,223 7,561 172,423 479,285
At 1 April 2005, net of R-ZZERFMNA—AH-
accumulated depreciation MR EFHTE 150,294 18,784 130,223 7,561 172,423 479,285
Additions RE - 1,467 31,971 916 192,906 227,260
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— M B AR
(note 35(a)) (HMi7E35(a)) 17,251 - 1,649 76 - 18,976
Disposals e - (6) (2,344) (204) - (2,554)
Disposal of non-current assets HERAFEZ
classified as held for sale ERBEE (65,213) - - - - (65,213)
Transfers from construction in EREEELRR
progress 143,612 25,924 8,874 - (178,410) -
Transfer to investment properties B ER GV
(note 16) (PMizE16) - - - - (176,925) (176,925)
Transfer to prepaid land EREENLES
premiums (note 17) (PMI5E17) - - - - (13,890) (13,890)
Depreciation provided REFFE
during the year (3,376) (8,092) (43,116) (2,366) - (56,950)
Exchange realignment T 5 3,328 316 2,381 132 4,022 10,179
At 31 March 20086, KRBT RF
net of accumulated =A=+—8
depreciation MR REHTE 245,896 38,393 129,638 6,115 126 420,168
At 31 March 2006: R-_ZEZENF=ZR=+—8:
Cost RAME 258,162 64,741 294,167 24,927 126 642,123
Accumulated depreciation 2EHinE (12,266) (26,348) (164,529) (18,812) - (221,955)
Net carrying amount IREFE 245,896 38,393 129,638 6,115 126 420,168

NS F3R 05/06
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

Group

16. W% WE Mkt ()
A S

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Office Motor Construction
buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
AE L HE WRE T
RigT S B AE I st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
T T T IT HETT BT T IT T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (&51)
31 March 2005 —EERE=A=+—H
At 1 April 2004: R-ZTEMFMHA—A:
Cost RAE 159,912 41,029 240,034 25,005 45,707 511,687
Accumulated depreciation BEHineE (5,618) (16,783) (96,607) (15,314) - (134,322)
Net carrying amount IREFE 154,294 24,246 143,427 9,691 45,707 377,365
At 1 April 2004, net of R-EZTNFNA—8/-
accumulated depreciation MR EFHTE 154,294 24,246 143,427 9,691 45,707 377,365
Additions RE - 1,758 29,245 562 129,572 161,137
Disposals HE (291) (470) (2,033) - - (2,794)
Transfers SR - 763 2,093 — (2,856) —
Depreciation provided AEFHE
during the year (3,711) (7,514) (42,520) (2,692) - (56,437)
Exchange realignment bE 5, R # 2 1 11 - - 14
At 31 March 2005, net of R-_TZZERF=FH=+—H
accumulated depreciation MR R E 150,294 18,784 130,223 7,561 172,423 479,285
At 31 March 2005: R-ZEERF=A=+—8:
Cost KRAME 159,462 42,865 259,505 24,577 172,423 658,832
Accumulated depreciation 2EHiE (9,168) (24,081) (129,282) (17,016) - (179,547)
Net carrying amount IR EDFE 150,294 18,784 130,223 7,561 172,423 479,285

110

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings included above are held under medium

term leases in Mainland China.

During the year, the Group’s certain leasehold land and buildings and prepaid
land premiums situated in Mainland China were transferred to non-current assets
classified as held for sale and then disposed of with an aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately HK$81,053,000, resulting in a net gain on disposal of
approximately HK$3,196,000 (note 5).
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, certificates of ownership with respect to certain of the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings in Mainland China with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately HK$226,529,000 (2005: HK$80,687,000) had
not been issued by the relevant government authorities. The directors represent
that the Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

At 31 March 2006, certain of the Group’s buildings situated in Mainland China
with a net carrying amount of approximately HK$16,725,000 (2005: Nil) were
pledged to secure certain bank and other loans granted to the Group (note 31).

15. W13 Wz RakiE ()

REEABRAEH SRASEIRMFERLENA
7E#226,529,0007T (—ZZ R F: 580,687,000
L) R BAE s HE T RET 2 BAEEE A
EEBBUTHEAR L -SSR R ASEIEERREE

23
ui%"

REZBERF=ZA=1+—H ~EEETLXFTEK
PENRTEDFE A #616,725,0007 (ZZZHF &) 2
BFETUER ERAEEESETRITREME
R R (HIEES1) °

Company AAT
Leasehold Office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEH S WAERME SE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETT BETT BETT
31 March 2006 —EZXRE=HA=1+—H
At 1 April 2005: RZZEZERFHA—H:
Cost ANME 2,831 1,699 985 5,515
Accumulated depreciation RETiE (1,769) (1,025) (591) (3,385)
Net carrying amount R FE 1,062 674 394 2,130
At 1 April 2005, net of RZZEZTERFHA—H:
accumulated depreciation kR 2 E 1,062 674 394 2,130
Additions NE - 116 - 116
Disposals HE - (15) - (15)
Depreciation provided AEEFE
during the year (575) (339) (197) (1,111)
At 31 March 20086, net of R=ZEEF=A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation kR 2T E 487 436 197 1,120
At 31 March 2006: R_EENF=A=+—H:
Cost RANE 2,831 1,606 985 5,422
Accumulated depreciation Rt e (2,344) (1,170) (788) (4,302)
Net carrying amount IR E 487 436 197 1,120

M EEE FIR 05/06
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d) 15. W% B Ra&E (&)
Company XA 7]
Leasehold Office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEEE WAERME AE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT AT EEET T EEETIT
31 March 2005 —EERF=A=+—H
At 1 April 2004: R-ZZEZENFHA—H:
Cost BB 2,764 1,503 985 5,252
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (1,207) (695) (394) (2,296)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,557 808 591 2,956
At 1 April 2004, net of R-_ZEZENFHPA—H
accumulated depreciation MR EHTE 1,657 808 591 2,956
Additions NE 67 221 - 288
Disposals HeE - 6) - 6)
Depreciation provided REEHE
during the year (562) (349) (197) (1,108)
At 31 March 2005, net of R_EZTRE=A=+—8"
accumulated depreciation MR EHTE 1,062 674 394 2,130
At 31 March 2005: R-_ETRF=A=+—0:
Cost RANME 2,831 1,699 985 5,516
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (1,769) (1,025) (591) (3,385)
Net carrying amount IREFE 1,062 674 394 2,130
16. Investment Properties 16. REMWH
Group
AEE
HK$’000
BET T
Transfer from construction in progress (note 15) EREEETRE (MFE15) 176,925
Net profit from a fair value adjustment BAFEERAR & F5E 7,368
Carrying amount at 31 March 2006 R-EERNFE=ZA=+—HZIRAE 184,293
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16. Investment Properties (cont’d)
The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China and are held
under medium term leases.

At the balance sheet date, certificates of ownership with respect to the Group’s
investment properties above had not been issued by the relevant government
authorities. The directors represent that the Group is in the process of obtaining
the relevant certificates.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2006 by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
approximately HK$184,293,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to a third party under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 37(a) to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:

16. HEWE (&)
ANE B 2 8B WS A AR B A B - I A AR BAFE 494
750

REEBBERGEER AEEN LREMEDAES
BHBATHEL AMARE EER~ AREEAR
BEMES-

R-EEAF=A=1t—HB AEEREWERBL
BELERGHEMERTEETGBEEBRATIEA
% RIRIT RS EREEH%5%184,293,0007T ° 7%
EREMERBCERNERTE=F E—TFH
B2 E RIS HREMIFES7(a) ©

AEBREMERZE—TFHBTWT:

Attributable

interest of
Location Use Tenure the Group
ik d P HH AEEELER
Digital Technology Plaza, Office building Medium 100%
No.9 Shangdijiu Street, HAKIE term lease
Haidian District, FRERFR 49
Beijing City,
The PRC
R BIE R
BEE
_3h9BT95R
ST ES
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17. Prepaid Land Premiums

17. A LiiEE

Group
AEE
2006 2005
—BBAREF i
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
(Restated)
(&%)
Carrying amount at 1 April: R A— R ZREE:
As previously reported LA 23R - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 (note 2.2(a)) FMEBSHERNFE175HR 22 (7E2.2()) 15,944 16,361
As restated gl 15,944 16,361
Transfer from construction in progress (note 15) EREEETRE (MiaE15) 13,890 -
Disposal of non-current assets classified PEFEREZIERDEE
as held for sale (15,840) -
Amortisation recognised during the year REETER 2 B (162) (417)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=EA=+—HZIKHE 13,832 15,944
Current portion included in prepayments, BREEEMNZE RER
deposits and other receivables H h FE W IE 2 R (347) -
Non-current portion IER D 13,485 15,944
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The Group’s leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is situated in

Mainland China.
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18. Goodwill 18. &
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset in the consolidated balance sheet, EHEH B AR EEMRIRE EERERNENMEA
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries, is as follows: BEZEESENT:
Group
TEE
HK$’000
BET T
31 March 2006 —EEXE=ZA=1+—H
At 1 April 2005: RZZETERFHA—H:
Cost as previously reported AR (AEZ3R) 22,065
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 (note 2.2(d)) RNE BV BmEERIEIR 22 & (M5E2.2(d) (4,821)
Cost as restated A (1 E5) 17,244
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE RRE
as previously reported (AEZ23R) 9,333
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 (note 2.2(d)) RNBE BV BmEEREIR 2 Z & (5E2.2(d) (4,821)
Accumulated impairment as restated Z2FRE (ES) 4,512
Net carrying amount REFE 12,732
Cost at 1 April 2005, net of accumulated impairment ~ R=TZEREI A — B 2 5K AME  H1% Z:HEE 12,732
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35(a)) Uy B8 — R B A 7 (F47E35(a)) 28,265
Impairment during the year AEFRE (12,894)
Exchange realignment Rk 162
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2006 R-ETERF=A=+—HZIKREFE 28,265
At 31 March 2006: RZEZRF=A=+—H
Cost BB 45,671
Accumulated impairment Z2EHRE (17,406)
Net carrying amount REFE 28,265
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18. Goodwill (cont’d)

18. & (&)

Group
rEE
HK$'000
BT IT
31 March 2005 —EERF=A=+—H
At 1 April 2004: RZZETNFHA—H:
Cost AANME 22,065
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE RRE (7,672)
Net carrying amount IREDFE 14,393
Cost at 1 April 2004, net of accumulated RZZZENFEOA—BZRKANE"
amortisation and impairment kR Rt H RORUE 14,393
Amortisation provided during the year NEFHH (1,661)
At 31 March 2005 N-ZZEThF=A=+—H 12,732
At 31 March 2005: R=ZZEZERF=A=+—8:
Cost RAME 22,065
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE RRE (9,333)
Net carrying amount MREDFE 12,732
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Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to the
following cash-generating units, both of which are under the Services segment,
for impairment testing.

e Telecommunications sector software development cash-generating unit; and
e  Government sector software development cash-generating unit.

Telecommunications sector software development cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the telecommunications sector software development
cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 6%.
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18. Goodwill (cont’d)

Impairment testing of goodwill (cont’d)

Government sector software development cash-generating unit

Due to continuous losses incurred by the subsidiary principally engaged in
government sector software development, the directors, by discounting the future
cash flow generated from the subsidiary at the discount rate applied to cash flow
projections of 6%, considered the goodwill of approximately HK$12,894,000 was
fully impaired.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-generating units is
as follows:

18. & (8)

PR EA (48)

BT TR AER 2 EE ST

AR E N EBUT TR R 3 2 B A BFERS
B8 ERRRIE S RETB 2 BIR Re % E 2 M B
RAIEEZ KRB RER RAAABEE12,894,000
TR EE 28URE

DERERRSELEMHNFBRMENT

2006 2005
—mmx —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Telecommunications sector software development BT EE(FRAZIB S ELEN
cash-generating unit 28,265 -
Government sector software development BT GRSR S EEEA
cash-generating unit - 12,732
28,265 12,732

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
telecommunications sector software development and government sector software
development cash-generating units for 31 March 2006 and 31 March 2005. The
following describes each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budgeted year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the cash-generating units.

R-ETAFZA=1t—BR_TTAF=A=1—
B stEEATESRGRAR RBTTERERERS
EXBMZFRABERESEHEE®RHR TXHLE
ERERETEERENRBIRSREMKIEZ SE

EEBR:
BEEMF-BEENEBE BT LeARERY
A — EEREARG 2 TR BRBRRE
127 RESTSERIEL L8

BB F—-FTRAZREXBBHAREIRE B RIRE
MRS ELEMMY R FERR-
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31 March 2006
—ZEEXFE=ZA=1+-—H

19. Intangible Assets

19. BILEE

Group AEE
Deferred
development
Licences costs Total
R R I 3 BA 3% B AR Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BET T
31 March 2006 —EEXRF=A=+—H
Cost at 1 April 2005, net of accumulated RZZZERFMA—HZKAE:
amortisation and impairment HORk R 5T 5 R R (B - 32,828 32,828
Additions NE 17,940 32,820 50,760
Disposals RE (17,940) - (17,940)
Amortisation provided during the year NEFHH - (7,255) (7,255)
Impairment during the year REFRE - (19,781) (19,781)
Exchange realignment Rk - 712 712
At 31 March 2006 RZEZRF=A=+—H - 39,324 39,324
At 31 March 2006: R-BEREF=ZA=1—8:
Cost ANE - 77,616 77,616
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE KR E - (38,292) (38,292)
Net carrying amount R FE = 39,324 39,324
31 March 2005 —EERFE=A=1+—H
At 1 April 2004: R-ZEZNFMYA—H:
Cost BXANE - 21,156 21,156
Accumulated amortisation and impairment REHE I RRE - (865) (865)
Net carrying amount IREFE - 20,291 20,291
Cost at 1 April 2004, net of accumulated RN FENA—HBZRAE:
amortisation and impairment R 2T ORE - 20,291 20,291
Additions N= - 22,649 22,649
Amortisation provided during the year NEFHH - (3,575) (3,575)
Impairment during the year REFRE - (6,537) (6,537)
At 31 March 2005 R-ZEZERF=A=+—H - 32,828 32,828
At 31 March 2005: RZZZRE=A=+—H:
Cost AME - 43,805 43,805
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETEE R RE - (10,977) (10,977)
Net carrying amount IREFE - 32,828 32,828
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19. Intangible Assets (cont’d)

During the year, in view of the changes in market demand, the directors considered
the carrying values of certain deferred development costs are irrecoverable after
taking into consideration of the estimated future revenue. Impairment losses of

approximately HK$19,781,000 are recognised accordingly.

20. Investments In Subsidiaries

19. B EE (8)

20. RMIBATIZIRE

RAEEAN MRTISE A ke E5EE Rt
KRRz 1% - RAE R EE THRER KA Z IR
& F R L8 H19,781,0007T 2 FiE EiE -

Company
AAT

2006 2005
S L —TEns
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT IT
(Restated)
(&31)
Unlisted shares, at cost IE LTS - IR AR 743,702 732,864

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: TERBATIEEN T :
Nominal value
of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable to
registration paid registered the Company
and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
Name MR ERTRAR AAT TEEK
£ BTREELR RAZE{E EiER B O
/EREMER HiE [EE3
Digital China (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares 100 - Investment holding
HEEEBES Us$5,125 REER
EEk
5,125% 7T
Alternate Agents Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary share = 100 Provision of
Mainland China US$1 supporting services
REERRES AR B ZIERE
1B 1X7T
Digital China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 100 Investment holding
MBS R A B HK$2 B
E AR
B2
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31 March 2006
—EEXE=A=1+—H

20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

20. RBRARIZIZE ()

Nominal value

AN HR AR

B

HK$5,000,000
EMEAR
7 #5,000,0007T

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable to
registration paid registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ AL, ERTRAR NG| TEEK
R kEEHE RAZHE LR AL
/EBEMER HiE [EES
Digital China (China) Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
FRINEES (R E) AR AR IEipN HK$1,000,000,000 and distribution of
A ER IT products
¥&#1,000,000,0007T R e R HITEm
Chengdu Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
B AR BB A BR A 7 B R HK$5,000,000 and distribution of
At ER IT products
755,000,000 AR R 5 HITE m
Shenyang Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
SRS 1o S A PR A )¢ B R P HK$5,000,000 and distribution of
A& IT products
755,000,000 AR R 5 HITE m
Shanghai Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital — 100 Systems integration
BN SIS A R A ) B R P HK$10,000,000 and distribution of
AR IT products
75#10,000,0007C RETEK K HITE M
Digital China (Shenzhen) Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
1IN ES ORI BRR AR Hh B R P HK$12,000,000 and distribution of
AR IT products
75112,000,0007T REEK K D HITE M
Xian Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration

and distribution of
[T products
RREK R SHITE D
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20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

20. RTBRARZRE (&)
FENBARFFBOT: (8)

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable to
registration paid registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ AL, ERTRAR NG| TEEK
R kEEHE RAZHE LR AL
/EBEMER HiE [EES
Wuhan Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
BRI ERE AR A A IEipN HK$5,000,000 and distribution of
EfER IT products
75 #5,000,0007T R R HITE m
Nanjing Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
A RPN ERAE A R A A H B A e HK$3,000,000 and distribution of
At ER IT products
753,000,000 AR R 5 HITE m
Guangzhou Digital China Limited*- Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
B e M S B PR A - SICTpN HK$12,000,000 and distribution of
A& IT products
75#12,000,0007T R ER R HITE m
Jinan Digital China Limited** Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Systems integration
TR AN EAE A R A )Y SICTpN HK$2,000,000 and distribution of
AR IT products
75 #2,000,0007T RETEK K HITE R
Digital China Marketing British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
& Services Ltd. REBERES Us$1 KB
E A
17T
Digital China Technology Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares - 100 Distribution of
1M ISR R AR AT Mainland China HK$1,000,000 IT products
B/ R D IHITEm
H B R 7#1,000,00070
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—EEXE=A=1+—H

20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

20. RBRARIZIZE ()

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable to
registration paid registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
=1 AL, ERTRAR NG| TEEK
R kEEHD RAZHE LR T AL
/EBEMER HiE [EES
Digital China Advanced Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares - 100 Systems integration
Systems Limited Mainland China HK$50,000,000 and distribution of
1B R RSB R A A BB/ il IT products
B R P ¥&#50,000,0007T R R HITE m
Digital China (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares = 100 Distribution of
MBS (FE) BRAF) e HK$10,000 IT products
E AR 2 8HITE m
75%10,0007T
E-Olympic International Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share — 100 Holding trademarks
REER RS US$1 FEE R
E A
12E7T
Digital China Networks, Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares - 99.1 Investment holding
INBIEERBR AR RBERRES US$10,000,000 KB
E A
10,000,000% 7T
Digital China Networks (HK) Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares - 99.1 Distribution of
1N B AR (BB BIRA A Mainland China HK$2 networking products
B/ E A DA E m
H B A e 2T
Digital China (Shanghai) Mainland China Registered capital - 99.1 Development

Networks Limited**

M EES (LiE) BmER DR

B

HK$3,000,000
ERUESEN
#¥£3,000,0007T

and distribution of
networking products

3 N 0 SHA AR EE o
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20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

20.

EE

RIB AR ZKE (B)
MEARFBNT: (B

Nominal value

of issued and Percentage
Place of fully paid of equity
incorporation/ share capital/ attributable to
registration paid registered the Company
Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
£ AL, ERTRAR NG| TEEK
R kEEHE R 2 E{E LR AL
/EBEMER HiE [EES
Grace Glory Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
HEEEBRES US$1 BB
TR
1267
Digital China Software (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
M EASE A (BVI) BR AR ERBERRES US$1 REER
AR
13670
Digital China Sinoray Technology Mainland China Registered capital - 100 Consultancy, design,
Limited*- B R P US$5,000,000 development,
1R B FTRE R B R A R]- A ER integration,
5,000,0003 7T application and
maintenance
of electronic
financial systems
ERMEFLRERD
TR RRET R
5L B RARE
Beijing Digital China Limited* Mainland China Registered capital — 100 Systems integration
bR S B R A A B R B RMB1,500,000,000 and distribution of
AR IT products
AR#1,500,000,0007C ARG R SHITE m
Beijing Digital China SicTech Co., Ltd.*  Mainland China Registered capital - 82 Application software

It N BB B EE S RMAER AR

B R R

RMB20,965,000
A E A

AR #20,965,0007T

development,
systems integration
and IT consultancy
services

FER B HFZE R4
R ITRE AR TS
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20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Bt 35 3R 2= MY &

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

20. RIMBAEZIRE (B)
TEMBRARFEWT: (8)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
=L AL, ERTREE NG| FTEEK
BRREELE R 2 H{E B ER L
SEHEMER HiE [EE
Beijing Instant Technology Logistics Mainland China Registered capital — 98.5 Provision of
Co., Ltd.* SIEipN17 RMB10,000,000 logistic services
IR RE R BR AR EERIIIE=¥N YRR
AR #10,000,0007T
Digital China (Zhengzhou) Limited* Mainland China Registered capital - 90 Systems integration
FRHNE0ES (EDM) BR A A B R PE RMB5, 100,000 and distribution of
A ER IT products
AR #5,100,0007T REEK K HITEm
Talent Gain Developments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary share - 100 Investment holding
HEEEBRES US$1 REEEIR
R
1Ev
DGT Information Systems Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 58 Investment holding
(“DGT”) BB US$3,000,000 KEER
1N S R R B B PR A A Preference shares
(e H 2R A5 38 AR ]) US$1,000,000
R
3,000,000 7T
BRIk
1,000,000% 7T
DGT Information Systems Mainland China Registered capital - 66 Software development

(Shanghai) Limited*#
SIS BAR G (BF) BRAR

o B AR

US$1,500,000
AR
1,500,000% 7T

and maintenance
services

A% RRE RS
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20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d)

20. RBRARIZIZE (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
share capital/
paid registered

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company

Name and operations capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
=L AL, ERTREZE AT FEXK
BRREELE KA ZEE EiERE B
SEHEMER HiE =

DGT Information Systems Mainland China Registered capital - 66 Software development
(Beijing) Limited** )N US$1,100,000 and maintenance
1 B AR e (b)) BRAE! &R services
1,100,0003 7T SRR B AR E PR TS
Power Gateway Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares = 100 Investment holding
REBERES US$100 KB

E A

1003 7T
Beijing Si-Tech Information Mainland China Registered capital - 81.18 Research and

Technology Co., Ltd. (“STQ”)** AR B K RMB 43,715,000 development,
IR BEFEEEMROERAR EftER application and
([BEF])* AR #43,715,0007T maintenance of
software products
BHERZHRER
% AR IR E A
N2 R
*  This company was newly acquired during the year. * A RTINS T g
+  The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of their Chinese registered +  RERRIZENEBEEZEEFMER 2R ETE
names.
#  Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law. #  BEVPBEEEFAMKIAEINERSE-.

~ Registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC law. ~

A The Chinese names are the trade names but not the official names of these companies. A

REFEEEEMAILATIEER S

FZERRZHXEWIE S EME WIEEIEA R
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—®¥AF=A=+-A

20. Investments In Subsidiaries (cont’d)
The Group acquired STQ during the year. Further details of this acquisition are
included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

21. Due from/(to) Subsidiaries

The amounts due from/(to) the subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts due
from/(to) the subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

22. Interests in Jointly-controlled Entities

20. RKTBRARZRE (&)
AEERAFEEARBEST - ERNEEHEZE—
B A 75 < M E85(@) ik o

EEZRRLRMBZARRMBERARHANEERFE
ZEBEERFESEAEBEEFECERNE D
EEZR AWML ELHEARER BEREBIRIT
o

21. FEl (FEfT) B A RRRIE

FEUT (FEAS) MY B A RIFRIB T IR B B R e [E
Bz SR (FEA) BT/ A Bl kI8 2 IR E (E 62
HAFEERS-

22. REFEFIEEZER

Group
Axm
2006 2005
S LI —eEns
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Share of net assets E(EEEFE 24,526 -

126

The Group’s trade receivable balance due from a jointly-controlled entity is disclosed
in note 28 to the financial statements.
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22. Interests in Jointly-controlled Entities (cont’d)
Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

22. WHRZEHIDEZ E ()
TEHRAEFERZFBOT:

Percentage

Place of of ownership

incorporation/ interest

registration attributable
Name and operations to the Group Principal activities
Z1B MR REEENL FEEK

BRREEMS HEREZEME
Digital China System Access Hong Kong 515 Investment holding
Holding Limited B FEER

eI SRS B 245 AR B PR A A

Beijing Digital China System Mainland China 68 Provision of
Access Software Limited* AR B K core banking
bR BIsE B R A A systems
RO ERTT
ESES

+ The English name of this company is a direct transliteration of its Chinese registered name.

The Group’s shareholdings in the jointly-controlled entities are held through the
subsidiaries of the Company.

The above table lists the jointly-controlled entities of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other jointly-controlled
entities would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

All the above jointly-controlled entities have been accounted for using the equity
method in these financial statements.

+  WARZEXARIERZSEMERL 2T X B

AEEREEEHIO L2 RETERA AT 2 HEA
A

EER/LERMBZ AREHFRIEG AREAEE AR
FERXEAEAZEIEAKREEEFELEAI
fn - ERZRRMI L E K REGIARER BiERE
BRI

P i AR I (b 338 B AR 2 AR AN B TS R 5
o
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22. Interests in Jointly-controlled Entities (cont’d)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s

jointly-controlled entities:

22, MAREHILEZ # ()
TRINRAEEAREHIERZBHEERBE:

2006
—EBEEX
HK$’000
BT T
Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ FEME EEIEFIRE 2
assets and liabilities: BERBE:
Current assets MENE E 9,066
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 15,662
Current liabilities mENEE (202)
Net assets BEFE 24,526
Share of the jointly-controlled FEAR 2L EHE S (b5 2 2248
entities’ results:
Revenue WA 530
Total expenses EEE (5,701)
Loss &8 (5,171)

128
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23. Interests In Associates

23. A& ARz S

Group

REM
2006 2005
S —gea%
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Share of net assets (R EEFE 36,453 36,145
Amount due from an associate JiE Ui B 5 R SRIE - 5,110
Amount due to an associate FE B & A RISRIE - (1,882)
36,453 39,373

At 31 March 2006, the amounts due from the associates included in the Group’s
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of approximately HK$8,506,000.

R-ZENF=A=1+—
EAREE ZBNZE RS

Al

SR NIl (RS
Ko Bt FEWGRIR - S RRAYE

#8,506,0007T °

The amounts due from/(to) the associates are unsecured, interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these amounts due from/(to)

the associates approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

FEY (FER) Bt A BRI EER 2 B REEE

EiE Eiiﬁ’éﬂﬁl/ FEH Bt N B ROR 2 IR (B £2
RFEEREE

TEHERRZFHBOT:

Percentage

Place of of ownership

incorporation/ interest

registration attributable
Name and operations to the Group Principal activities
£ MR AEEENL FEEK

B R E B EERRBEHL
Digital China Management British Virgin Islands 40 Investment holding
Systems (BVI) Limited EBERTAES AR
Digital China Management Mainland China 40 Provision of enterprise resources planning

Systems Limited*
NS EERGER AT

o B AR

software and related services

RECEERAGE M LB BRE
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23. Interests In Associates (cont’d)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows: (cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable

Name and operations to the Group Principal activities

£ AL AEEENG FEEK
BRREELE BEEREZEHL

Beijing Digital China Management Mainland China 40 Provision of enterprise

Systems Limited* Hp B K e resources planning

NS EEERBRA software and related

services

REEEERFEFEE R

B AR TS

Guangzhou Digital China Mainland China 40 Provision of enterprise

Management Systems Limited+ R B K B resources planning

BMNEMNSIEEREZRBRA software and related

services

RIECEBREZGEM R

B AR TS

Nanjing Mercuries DC Financial Mainland China 30 Development and sale

Systems Ltd.*
ARSMNBE=AEERARREERA

o B AR

of automatic teller
machines and related
financial services

B BhiE B & & BiAE
EmzREREE

130

+ The English names of these companies are direct transliterations of their Chinese registered

names.
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23. Interests In Associates (cont’d)
The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held through the subsidiaries of
the Company.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity method in
these financial statements.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s
associates extracted from their financial statements:

23. REE RN R 2 (5B)
ANEFHEE N R Z BAE T B BARR B Z B AR
=)

EER R ERAEZASER SR T%TKE@$¢F
EEBEARENMAEEEEFEZERE D
FRRMF L E AR E R RER Hﬂ;“i%%ﬁ@ﬁém%o

T Lol & R R B AR s AR AR TSR R T 0k

TRINFAEERE AR 2 MEERRE (ke E
TS HREK) -

2006 2005

—BBAREF —TTHF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T T

Assets AE 167,020 142,628
Liabilities B8E (68,154) (42,521)
Revenues A 243,231 197,996
Profit/(loss) swAl (E518) (11,177) 6,894

24. Available-for-sale Equity Investments/Long Term Investments

24, AIHEZRENRE RERE

Group
AEE
2006 2005
=t -1 PY-3 —ETHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JE ETRARME VIR & - IR AN 32,944 30,545

The above investments consist of investments in equity securities which were
designated as available-for-sale financial assets on 1 April 2005 and have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Their fair values cannot be measured reliably because the
probabilities of various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair values.

A ERSEERE RERAN TR
mA—BRIEEATMRINESBERE B mETE
R EEACE FIES

AEE 2 I ERBIEIR B IR AR RIS R EERS

tRe RN A RHEE WXIE%“rZ*E)ET, BEA R
RAMEERFEE REER ST EE R FEE
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—ZEEXFE=ZA=1+-—H

25. Deferred Tax 25 IEFERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows: BEEHIBEERBEFASEINT:
Group AEE
Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE
2006
—EBEREF
Losses available
for offsetting
against future Asset
taxable profit provisions Others Total
Al FARAIE 8%
RIRPERBL
B HlZ e EERE Hith Fi
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
At 1 April 2005 R-ETREMA—A 11,031 15,314 2,198 28,543
Deferred tax credited/ FAERERSP
(charged) to the income FEA (HBR)
statement during the year ZIEFERIR (739) (395) 13,644 12,510
Exchange realignment bE R 231 351 72 654
Gross deferred tax assets RZEZERF=ZA=+—HZ
at 31 March 2006 RIET IR & E AR 10,523 15,270 15,914 41,707
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25. Deferred Tax (cont’d)

25. ELEFIE (8)

Group AEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHREEE
2006
—BTXRE
Unrealised losses
from intragroup Revaluation

transactions of properties Others Total
£EBARS
BEEZX
BHER L/ E3=r Hth “Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BET T BT T
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZTRFMNA—H - - 797 797
Deferred tax charged to FATER KRR
the income statement HIBR 2 FEEFL IR
during the year 5,411 1,105 3,207 9,723
Exchange realignment IE H - - 37 37
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-EZERF=A=1+—H82Z
at 31 March 2006 FEN I B G HERE 5,411 1,105 4,041 10,557
Net deferred tax credited to ~ FAFEWZIRPTAZ
the income statement IR I F R
during the year (note 11) (PfF=E11) 2,787
Net deferred tax assets R-BEZERF=A=1+—H82
at 31 March 2006 FIER IR E =R 58 31,150

NS F3R 05/06
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25. Deferred Tax (cont’d)

Bt 35 3R 2= MY &

25. EEFRIE (B

E)

Group REE
Deferred tax assets IEEBIREE
2005
—ZTTRF
Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable Asset
profit provisions Others Total
A AR
bl E=| BERE H At Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T AT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2004 R-ZEZTWFMA—H 3,045 12,312 4,174 19,531
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  FEREMzER T
the income statement A ($0BR)
during the year ZIEFERIE 7,986 3,002 (1,976) 9,012
Gross deferred tax assets R-EZRF=A=+—HZ
at 31 March 2005 RIEF IR B E4A%E 11,031 15,314 2,198 28,543
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE
Unrealised losses
from intragroup
transactions Others Total
EENZHELE
ZAREHEE HAftb st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT IT
At 1 April 2004 RZZZEFMA—H 2,417 340 2,757
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FREW R KR F
the income statement gk~ G A)
during the year ZIRIEREIE (2,417) 457 (1,960)
Gross deferred tax liabilities R-_ZEZERF=A=+—HZ
at 31 March 2005 EEFIR B ELRTE - 797 797
Net deferred tax credited to FEREWRSERPTAZ
the income statement ERER IS RE
during the year (note 11) (MF=E11) 10,972
Net deferred tax assets R-EZRF=A=1+—HZ
at 31 March 2005 R IR & = F 8 27,746
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25. Deferred Tax (cont’d)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$93,921,000 (2005: HK$100,604,000) which are due to expire within five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the subsidiaries in which the losses
arose. These tax losses and certain deductible temporary differences of
approximately HK$28,958,000 (2005: HK$30,051,000) have not been recognised
as deferred tax assets since they have arisen in subsidiaries that have incurred
losses for some time.

At 31 March 2006, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability
(2005: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries, jointly-controlled entities or associates as the Group has
no liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by
the Company to its shareholders.

26. Inventories

25. EIEFLIA (48)

N2 B 2Rk B H B K 2 TR 5 1 4075 #593,921,0007T
(ZZZTRHF:/E8100,604,0007) * Al AR SHEE
B 1R 2 B A Rl 2 KRR FERT &= A MR A FE WE
e P E B IEE T A T Al R B B [ BE A0S
#28,958,0007T (ZZZ R 4 : /B #30,051,0007T) JI
REEERE—ERRE 2B A R MR ER AR
TR A E-

R-BZEAF=A=+—H RETAEENBEAR)
H AR (> kB A Bl 2 R EE L AT BRZER
TEME A 7N £ [ 4 R (AR R RSN I8 - i SE AR RS
ZEARERELERIEEE (ZZTRF &) o

ARRAREZN 28  TEHEFEHER

26. 78

Group
AEE
2006 2005
—EEAE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
U T T T
Trading stock Bo51FE 1,567,027 1,283,673

M EEE FIR 05/06
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27. Due from/(to) Contract Customers

27. FEW (FEfY) EREFZRE

Group
rEE
2006 2005
—BBAREF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Gross amount due from contract customers BErAEtEN R 2 KA
included in other receivables R 2 IBRATE 31,772 34,310
Gross amount due to contract customers BEEFAHMENREZENE
included in other payables NEF 2 R IBMHEEE (14,204) (21,589)
17,568 12,721
Contract costs incurred plus recognised BEBBRRGEEANELEZEHRA
profits less recognised losses to date INE MR F R B R E R 312,683 276,341
Less: Progress billings S KRR (295,115) (263,620)
17,568 12,721
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28. Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of 30 days to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. In
view of the abovementioned, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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AEEEZUEEFNEERFETEE SIEK ME—
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28. Trade and Bills Receivables (cont’d)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the balance sheet date
and net of impairment is as follows:

28. EUWE BRI EUFE (&)
REERBERGE R MRBER ZEBKESIRA K
IR 2 IRER DATRHIBAN T

Group

AEE
2006 2005
—BBAREF i
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within 30 days 30K 1,444,990 1,061,425
31 to 60 days 31 RXE60K 339,584 301,362
61 to 90 days 61 RXE90K 250,167 175,986
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 324,812 264,540
Over 180 days HBiE180K 225,120 300,754
2,584,673 2,104,067

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables approximate to their fair
values.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due from the
subsidiaries of the Company’s controlling shareholder of approximately HK$520,000
(2005: HK$2,057,000).

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts due from the related
companies of DGT, a subsidiary of the Group, a jointly-controlled entity and the
associates of approximately HK$7,293,000 (2005: HK$8,299,000), HK$246,000
(2005: Nil) and HK$617,000 (2005: HK$480,000), respectively.

The above balances are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to the
major customers of the Group.

FEU B 5 R K FE R B 2 tREE B E A B4R
e

ANEE 2 EUE SR N ERE RS AR ERRAR
AR AR R 2 T/ A R FIE 4078 #520,0007T (=
T HF: B2 ,057,0007T) °

RNEE 2 R E SRR RN RIS 28 B iR e s
HIEBRAET (AEEZHBAR) 2BBEAR]—
] L[R2 ) 10 35 ] 25 [ Bl 42 8 B 2 OB 2 Bl 49 7S S
7,293,0007T (— == R F : #%8,299,0007T) * B
246,0007T (ZZFZT A F ) kE%617,0007T (=ZF
TR F B #480,0007T) ©

HRESTIRERE T ARBEERES 2B UEERK
RIEE
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29. Cash and Bank Balances

29. BERWITHER

Group Company
REH AAT
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EBEREF —ZTTRF —EEXRE —TTRF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T T BT T T T
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTEE 297,768 453,286 26,606 1,859

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$231,907,000 (2005:
HK$404,339,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate to their fair
values.

30. Trade and Bills Payables
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the balance sheet date is as
follows:

REEBEBEREEH AEEUARE ([ARE])
EEZRE RIRITHEBE 4B 231,907,0007T
— T RHF 7E¥404,339,0007T) c ARBTEEH
HBRAEMER AW REP B 2 INEB IR GG R4S
P& E R EEFERTE AEBEEEREREET
INEERS 2 RITIHEARE KSRt E K-

RITEFRTRE B RITIF AR R AFEF R BB
& RIRITHESR 2 IREEEE AT EERE

30. ENESRARENRE
REEREREZER BNEZRARENZR 2R
EROMTEIRIA T :

Group

REM
2006 2005
S —TTaf
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days 30KA 778,527 876,040
31 to 60 days 31 KE60X 765,235 441,227
61 to 90 days 61 KXZ290K 267,857 188,583
Over 90 days HBEI0K 244,138 155,105
2,055,757 1,660,955
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The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are generally settled for a period
of 30 days to 180 days. Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts
due to an associate of approximately HK$2,011,000 (2005: HK$3,697,000). The
balances are repayable on similar credit terms to those obtained from the major
suppliers of the Group.
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31. Interest-bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

3

1. ERTREMBER

Group Company
Effective rEH RAFE]
interest rate Maturity 2006 2005 2006 2005
EWAE MR —®BAE —TTAF —BRAF —TTAF
(%) HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(BakL) BT T BT T BET T T T
Current E
Bank loans, unsecured IRITE N KA 4.72-7.81 2006 1,182,189 803,095 - 273,000
Bank loan, secured RITER BEA 5.58 2006 4,799 - - -
Other loan, secured EaER A 5.60 2007 19,197 = = =
1,206,185 803,095 - 273,000
Non-current JERED
Bank loans, unsecured RITE R EEA - 273,000 - 273,000
1,206,185 1,076,095 - 546,000
Group Company
AEE RATF
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EBERF —ZTTAHEF —EEREF —ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T AT BT T BT IT
Analysed into: DT :
Bank loans repayable: fEEBIRITE:
Within one year or on demand —FRIRBA 1,186,988 803,095 - 273,000
In the second year REZFA - 273,000 - 273,000
1,186,988 1,076,095 - 546,000
Other loan repayable: HinfEEEER:
Within one year or on demand —FREIRBAN 19,197 - - -
1,206,185 1,076,095 - 546,000

NS F3R 05/06
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31. Interest-bearing Bank and Other Borrowings (cont’d) . B BRITREMEK (B)
Notes: Fﬁﬁ-
) The Company guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans of approximately () REEABEXRLEER AARBHETAEERITERLE
HK$1,173,550,000 (2005: HK$530,095,000) at the balance sheet date. #1,173,550,0007T L%%ﬁi 75 #£530,095,0007T) 1E
HAELR
(i) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans of approximately HK$4,799,000 and approximately
HK$19,197,000, respectively, extended by financial institutions to a subsidiary of the Group, (iy ANEEETRITREMERD RIALEH4,799,0007T K&
STQ, were secured by a property situated in Mainland China with a net carrying amount of #19,197,0007T EHEMMEER TASE 2 —HBR
approximately HK$16,725,000 (2005: Nil) at the balance sheet date and 14,061,976 issued RIERT TREEBBERAZBUIRAFENABE
shares of STQ in favour of Beijing Zhongguancun Sci-Tech Guaranty Co. Ltd. (the “Pledgee”), 16,725,0007T (ZE TR F &) (AR B KRE 2 — W%
an independent third party, for securing a guarantee issued by such Pledgee on behalf of L BEEEH14,061,976 B B TRMDIKIF T —2BILE =
STQ. The other loan is repayable in January 2007. TR ANTHIERAR AR ([FIRA L) SERERANRE
BRF 2 ESRER 2 B R-EMERER ST +F—AE
(i)  Except for bank borrowings of approximately HK$981,578,000 which are denominated in &e
United States dollars (“US$”), all bank and other borrowings are in RMB.
(i) BRAZBKHBEE81,578,0007T 2 SRITEFAETT ([ZET])
(v) During the year, the Group’s and the Company’s entire syndicated loan balance of FIESN FTERIT REMEFRITAARETIE-
HK$546,000,000 as at 31 March 2005 had been fully repaid.
(ivy ANFERNAEERARRN-_ZTTRAF=A=+—HZ
BREES ﬁ%%ﬁﬁé%me 000,0007T B B fEE -
Other interest rate information: H A Fi| = &Rt
Group
AEE
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ZTThHF
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate
&l F £ FEFIE & 7 ) = EEDF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BRI ST
Bank loans — unsecured RITE N — I 200,611 981,578 - 1,076,095
Bank loan — secured ﬁEﬁ/ T — A 4,799 = = =
Other loan — secured HEaER - HEKIE 19,197 = = =
Company
AT
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ZTThHF
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate
&l R £ FEFIE & 7 ) = EE S
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT T ST
Bank loans — unsecured RITE R — EIEK I - - - 546,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings approximate AEERAARERZIRABEEAFEBRE A

to their fair values which are calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows at prevailing interest rates.
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32. Share Capital

32. kA&

2006 2005
S N —TEns
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 (2005: 2,000,000,000) ordinary 2,000,000,0008% (=== H £ :2,000,000,0000%)
shares of HK$0.1 each BREEEE01 T2 EEK 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: B BT R RE:
866,934,081 (2005: 861,256,331) ordinary shares  866,934,081% (=== H 4 :861,256,331/%)
of HK$0.1 each EREESBE0IIT TR 86,693 86,126

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 5,677,750 (2005: 1,510,000)
share options were exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.976 per share
(note 33), resulting in the issue of 5,677,750 (2005: 1,510,000) ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$11,218,000 (2005: HK$2,984,000).

33. Share Option Schemes

2001 Share Option Scheme

The old share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 14 May 2001 (the
“2001 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the board of directors of the
Company may, at its discretion, grant options to full-time employees (including
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (the “Employee(s)”)
to subscribe for shares of the Company. The purpose of the 2001 Share Option
Scheme is to provide the Employees with an opportunity to obtain equity interests
in the Company and to reward them for contributing to the long term success of
the Group.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme had not exceeded 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum entitlement
of any Employee thereunder had not exceeded 25% of the aggregate number of
shares subject to the 2001 Share Option Scheme. A consideration of HK$1.00
was received on acceptance of each grant. A detailed summary of the 2001 Share
Option Scheme had been disclosed in the 2001/02 annual report of the Company.

Due to the amendment of the requirements for share option schemes under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, some of the provisions of the 2001 Share Option Scheme
are no longer applicable.

REFERN5,677,750(0 (ZEEFHF:1,510,00017)
M RERE BRENGREE1.976 T2 RME
BEATE (KI5E33) - EHIt5,677,7500% (ZET A F:
1,510,0004%) FREEHEE0.170 2 LB IA AR
SRE CRIDRES) #085%11,218,000T (ZEZH
£ #E2 084,0007T) FIAE T

33. BRETE
T -FERETE
$ Az EEBRENEN =T —

([ —EE—

— ==

FRATHALK
FREESE]) B ARRESEE
T@’\J\ai‘x%$’&ﬁ?§iﬁ1&ﬁﬁﬂ%“ﬂZ%H&@E (8
EHTESR) ([BR)) ARBAR BN 2 BE-
—EE-FRREMIEEREEAREUESEAR
BlZ AR URBREHAEE 2 REKIER
Pt 2 B Rk

RE_TT iﬁﬁﬂxﬁiﬁriﬂfHjZE%Hx%Ffﬁ@ETE
BIIRBTRTZESROEE LEBBARF

R BTRAZ10% - E—TT—FHERHETEIT E
e B A ERE 2 H= RO BB W EEBZAE TR

DHEZ226% - BIRR 2 IR R A 2 R
BEAB1.00m - — T —FBREAIZFEMED

RERRZ BB/ Z_FEEFRARE-

MR ETRAE1T7EBRBRET I 2 RECIEE
R B T RS2 E TR BEA -
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33. Share Option Schemes (cont’d)

2001 Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 July 2002, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) (details of which are set out below) and the
termination of the operation of the 2001 Share Option Scheme. Despite the fact
that no further options shall be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme,
the provisions of the 2001 Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects to govern all outstanding options granted prior to
termination.

The following table shows the movements in the share options under the 2001
Share Option Scheme during the year and the options outstanding at the beginning
and end of the year:

33. fERERTE (8)

—TTFREBEE (8)

R-ZFZ_FL AT N\BBTZARRBRBFAE
b AARBERILERA R ERES S ([ZFF
—FRBRERE]) GHEEN T MR LEER—F
T ERREA S HAR AR SERE_TT—
FREEZE - SROBRE -2 —FBR
R B 2 R E M AT A T EIDREA + R RIE
- AEEE PR B AR IERIE R M M AR T 2 Bk

TREGNE_ZT—FHERETE TERERAFE
M2 &) PARRE R FEREARITE < A :

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Grantee 01/04/2005 during the year during the year  during the year 31/03/2006
R-BEHEF R-BEARE
mA—AH REE REE EE =A=t+—H
ARA 18 RATE AR AT HE AR 8 RATHE

(note iii) (Bt i)

Subscription
price per share Date of grant Exercisable period

S
REBE BB 1788
(HKS) G&E#T)
(note i) (P&l (note i) (FiIED)

Directors

=

GUO Wei 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000
By 2,800,000 - - - 2,800,000
LIN Yang 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000
W15 1,500,000 = = = 1,500,000
HUA Zhinian 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000
EilRes 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000

Other employees

Hitifg s

In aggregate 27,390,000 = = (2,273,000) 25,117,000

&5t 1,100,000 - - (1,100,000) -
16,838,000 - (5,677,750) (539,750) 10,620,500
56,128,000 - (5,677,750) (3,912,750) 46,537,500

3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
1.976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009

3.180 12/07/2001  12/07/2002-11/07/2009
1.976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009

3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
1.976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009

3.604 08/06/2001  08/06/2002-19/06/2009
3.180 12/07/2001 12/07/2002-11/07/2009
1.976 31/08/2001  31/08/2002-30/08/2009
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33. Share Option Schemes (cont’d)

2001 Share Option Scheme (cont’d)
Notes:

(i)  Alloptions granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25% becoming exercisable
on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on the third anniversary and
25% on the fourth anniversary of the respective date of grant.

(i)  The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus
issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(i)  The weighted average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately preceding
and at the dates of the exercise of options were approximately HK$2.62 and HK$2.65,
respectively.

(iv)  No options were cancelled under the 2001 Share Option Scheme during the year.

(v) At the balance sheet date, the Company had 46,537,500 share options outstanding under
the 2001 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 46,537,500 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of approximately HK$4,653,800
and share premium of approximately HK$134,696,000 (before issue expenses).

2002 Share Option Scheme

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was adopted on 18 July 2002 and its principal
terms are as follows:

(@) Purpose

The 2002 Share Option Scheme seeks to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions or potential contributions made or to be made by the qualified persons
(as defined below) to the Group, to motivate the qualified persons to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to maintain or attract
business relationship with the qualified persons whose contributions are or may
be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

(b) Qualified persons

Any part-time or full-time employee or officer or director (including executive,
non-executive or independent non-executive) of any member of the Group or of
any associated company, or any supplier, agent, customer, joint venture partner,
strategic alliance partner, distributor, professional adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the Group, or the trustee of any trust pre-approved
by the board of directors of the Company, the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects) of which include any of the above-mentioned
persons.

(c) Maximum number of shares

At 31 March 2006, the maximum number of shares available for issue under the
2002 Share Option Scheme was 86,303,308, which represents approximately
9.9% of share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of these financial
statements.

33. MERHERE ()
TR FEREAE (8
P aE -

() PIEREZBRESZHINRENSE 2 BB KH25%0]
RERH BB —BF 2 BRIRTTE 25% AT i mANE
F 2 BRARTTE 256% A Nim =B+ 2 BFKRITE %25%
A RRINBE 2 B R TE-

(i) BBAIEC RBENARRERSIREARBAERAHER
AR RS AT T

(i)  ANABBD N REIEBAENEITE A RATE B Z T
W B R4 A&k 2.627T REK2.657T

(iv) RAFEAGEBRERE ST FRERES KU

V) REEEBEXREED ARFAR-ZZT—FRERETETH
546,537,50017 FEARIE R AT E - BIEAR R A Z IR B AR
B 2ETEZSE N ARITE 2 B RE S S BEIN
#£1746,537, 5000 AR B 2 iBAR - WERIMNEE R AN
#4,653,8007T K i 17 4 {8 495 #134,696,0007T (Rt
IRA%) °

—EE_FERETE
—TEEFERETE N ST _F LA+ /\BE
e EE E RN

CYR=N:0)

TEEFERETEE CERREHEERAL
(&R T30 HAREEATEL S ED 2 BRI AT
e BREN BABBEERALTAEAER 2 FIZER
SR RIREEE 2R WA BRES g AL
CEBRR AERATZEREERSEIRAE
R

b) BEBAL
AEBEEMIK B AR S EMHE QT 2 EA 2B
BESHSRABHES (BENT FFATIBILIE
HITES) AAEEEAKE DR Z ERIHER K
2 BE RERMN REUBERE S BEK
AN BERSASRE HARAREFSTRALEZ M
it (EXmA GiiA2EERT AIR2ERE S
R) BREEFLRAL) ZXFEAC

) =EREHEE
R-BERF=A=1t—H0 E_ZTZT _FERE:T
2R AIMEETT 2 D RS B 486,308,308A% (57
REATEIRR B EA R BB 31T A 499.9% °
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33. Share Option Schemes (cont’d)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

(d) Maximum entitlement of each qualified person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to each qualified person (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company then in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be approved by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company (excluding the independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of such options).

Any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective associates must, in addition to
obtaining the approval of the independent non-executive directors of the Company,
be approved by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting if such
proposed grant of share options, when aggregated with all options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) already granted to such substantial
shareholder or independent non-executive director during the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such grant of options, would (j) entitle that relevant
person to receive more than 0.1% of the total issued share capital of the Company
for the time being; and (i) represent an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
based on the closing price of the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at the date of such grant.

(e) Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall be the period set out in the relevant offer
letter provided that such period must expire on the date falling on the tenth
anniversary of the offer date.

(f)  Acceptance of offers

An offer of the grant of an option shall be accepted by the grantee on or before
the last date for acceptance of such offer as set out in the offer letter, which must
not be more than 28 business days from the relevant offer date. A consideration
of HK$1.00 shall be received by the Company on acceptance of each offer.
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33. ERERTE (8)

—TT_FREBEE (8)

@) FEEEBALAERZZSEE
BEAERATEEAT _EAASBERE_ZTT_F
Rt 8| AN A R E T E AL BB AR T B A R 2 1B
It (BHRREITERAARTTR) EITEE TRETR
BFETZ&RSRNHBE TESEBEAAREREET
Befn21% ° (EfE—FR MR HRR 2 BERE 15
ARFBRRRAABRRAE LR TTAEE-

ERAARARES TRAHI T ERRAKRESE
ZHBEARDBRE VARARR 2B IFNTE
FTERGRREEREARAZELIFNTE
=) #Hhke

FREARRZ EBRRFTBIYIEN TESHHEES
B BB AR BB AR RS - Wi R IR 2 BB AR N
FEEZABELEREZBIE (BEZAER) =
ERBHEAER T ERESE L IENITES 2T
ERERE (THREEET sk mARTTE) ()
FZABATBREBEIREGE RN B E R E 31T
FRASAREEI0.1%  R(RAA AR DRZE L B 87
BB AERZABRAT ([BRFT]) 2 WmhETE
HAaE A8 %5,000,0007T Bk T BEEANA B
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33. Share Option Schemes (cont’d) 33. BkiEETE (&)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont’d) T FRERETE (B)
(g) Basis for determination of subscription price (9) BEBZETEE

The subscription price shall be the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares on RBEBANINF Z&EE @QBRORELNBEH 2K
the offer date; (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares for the five business HE: bR BEEL BN AEZEEA 2 ¥

days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value of a share. W8 k()i tn < E{Ee

(h) Life of the 2002 Share Option Scheme () =FEZFE_FEREE B

The 2002 Share Option Scheme shall remain valid and effective for a period of ten TR FEREFEINR=_ZET_F AT+ AR &
years commencing from 18 July 2002, the date on which such scheme is deemed ZETEIRBE R ER AR AR 2 B) itz +F 5
to take effect in accordance with its terms. MARERERREER

The following table shows the movements in the share options under the 2002 TREFIIE T — FRHERET S NBIRERNAER
Share Option Scheme during the year and the options outstanding at the beginning A2 B8 ARREI R ERBARITE 2 EARE:
and end of the year:

Number of share options

BREZE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at Subscription
Grantee 01/04/2005  during the year  during the year  during the year 31/03/2006 price per share Date of grant Exercisable period
R-BEHF R-ZBBXF
mMA—H REE AEE EE =A=+—H R
EREA 18 RATE AR RATHE AR 8 RAT6E REBE BB TEH
(HKS) (E¥7T)
(note ii) (T aEii) (note i) (PfT £
Directors
=
LI Qin 2,500,000 = = = 2,500,000 2.068 24/06/2004 24/06/2005-23/06/2012
)
GUO Wei 5,000,000 = = = 5,000,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
BE
LIN Yang 2,500,000 = = = 2,500,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
N
HUA Zhinian 2,000,000 = = = 2,000,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
Ay
Other employees
Hivfg 8
In aggregate 48,572,000 = = (2,574,000) 45,998,000 2.750 13/10/2003 13/10/2004-12/10/2011
A&t
60,572,000 = = (2,574,000) 57,998,000
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33. Share Option Schemes (cont’d)

2002 Share Option Scheme (cont’d)
Notes:

(i)  All options granted are subject to a vesting period of four years with 25% becoming exercisable
on the first anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on the third anniversary and
25% on the fourth anniversary of the respective date of grant.

(i)  The subscription price of the options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus
issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(i)  No options were cancelled under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year.

(iv) At the balance sheet date, the Company had 57,998,000 share options outstanding under
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 57,998,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of approximately
HK$5,799,800 and share premium of approximately HK$151,989,700 (before issue expenses).

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general
meetings.

The fair values of equity-settled share options granted were estimated as at the
respective date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the
inputs to the model used:

Dividend vyield (%)

Expected volatility (%)
Historical volatility (%) 48 per annum
Risk-free interest rate (%) 3.58 and 4.11 per annum
Expected life of option (year) 8
Weighted average share price (HK$) 2.72

2.75 per annum
45 per annum

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past three
years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur.
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
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34. Reserves

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 59 of the financial statements.

Reserve funds

34. #E
(a) A&EE

AEERAFRERATFE2RERFRAESHSES

SR B TS KR EEE9 B 2 FR 6 1

rEEE

HEBER-

REESAANEERTEAE B ARIZTEER

Reserve funds are reserves set aside in accordance with the relevant PRC ERREB T 2 RE -2 EREES Y ANEE R AR
regulations applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. These reserve BAEUReREZ AR DK
funds can be used to offset accumulated losses but not be distributable in the
form of cash dividends.
(b) Company (b) &RAH
Employee
Share share-based
premium  Contributed compensation Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
LARRAS 2 1+F
& 15 BEZ RE
Jm (B IR AR [l bzl HEt
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FfiEE BT BT T BT BT BT T
At 1 April 2004: R-ZEEWNFM™A—H:
As previous reported A2 291,850 623,689 - 66,105 981,644
Prior year adjustment A F R - - 13,526 (1,210) 12,316
As restated £l 291,850 623,689 13,526 64,895 993,960
Exercise of share options 1T ARAE 2,833 - - - 2,833
Equity-settled share option VARG 32 1~ 2.
arrangements fERR I BE - - 24,069 = 24,069
Profit for the year NEE R A - - - 160,964 160,964
Proposed final 2005 dividend R ST RERBAKE 13 - - - (73,465) (73,465)
At 31 March 2005 R-_ZETRF=A=+—H 294,683 623,689 37,595 152,394 1,108,361
At 1 April 2005: R-ZEZTRFWMA—H:
As previous reported LA 23R 294,683 623,689 - 156,532 1,074,904
Prior year adjustment NEFEHAE - - 37,595 (4,138) 33,457
As restated =5 294,683 623,689 37,595 152,394 1,108,361
Exercise of share options 1T{E R AR 10,651 = = = 10,651
Equity-settled share option AR S 2
arrangements FE AR BE - - 12,863 - 12,863
Profit for the year AN A - - - 91,840 91,840
Proposed final 2006 dividend R — T RNFRAKE 13 - - - (86,693) (86,693)
At 31 March 2006 R-EZTXRF=HA=+—H 305,334 623,689 50,458 157,541 1,137,022
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34. Reserves (cont’d)

(b) Company (cont’d)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the fair value of
the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a corporate reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended) and the
Bye-Laws of the Company, the contributed surplus can be distributed to the
shareholders, provided that the Company will be able to pay its liabilities as they
fall due and subsequent to the distribution, the aggregate amount of its total
liabilities, as well as the issued share capital and premium, is less than the realisable
value of its assets.

35. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary

In November 2005, the Group acquired a 71.04% equity interest in STQ for a
consideration of approximately HK$53,869,000.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of STQ acquired as at the
date of acquisition were as follows:

34. f#fE (B)

(b) ARAF (%)
RNRRZBABBRIERIB BEEA R RIRO B AT
FiR Emim#ETz —EAREAMKEH B AR 2
HEAFBERNARMEARIAMEITZRAEE
2B RIE B RENRE (YER]) RARGE ZAR]
MR A BBRA DR TR AR R MEFENE
ER|H 2 ERS MEZEDIRE  ANA R 2 BEBEUK
BETRARZENENEEEN ] ESIRE

35. AR REBEXRMETE

(a) WE—EMEAR

RZZEZERF+—A AEEUREHEE
53,869,0007T 1 BHF AT 2. 71.04% R A 7R o

RUEERS R ER ST 2ASEERRBEZA
FEEHIAT:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
B EERERR
2ATEE
Notes HK$’000
B3 BT T
Property, plant and equipment IER N 15 18,976
Interests in associates REEE AR 2 1,183
Available-for-sale equity investments A& 2 R E 2,399
Trade receivables EUE SRR 12,862
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEfT /IR R R E A fE KGR IR 41,564
Cash and bank balances e RIRI TR 15,518
Trade payables JER B SRR (11,678)
Other payables and accruals Hipfe S ahERER (16,742)
Tax payable FESFRIA (204)
Short term bank borrowings HHRSRITER (8,639)
Long term other borrowings REEMER (19,197)
Minority interests DB R (10,438)
25,604
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEA 2 e 18 28,265
53,869

Satisfied by: TRAR:
Cash He 53,869
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35. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont’d)

(@ Acquisition of a subsidiary (cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the identifiable assets and liabilities of STQ immediately
before the acquisition approximate to their respective fair values as stated above.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

. FERRERME (&)
(a) WeiE R B R (8)
ERWEEEN B AR ER BB IREE
B Xt EE a2 A FEERE.

IR B A TEL 2 R e RE S SE
FEAT

HK$’000

BT T

Cash paid BEfEE (49,221)

Cash and bank balances acquired Whg 2 38 & MIRTT A 15,518
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WE— B AREELEZE S

in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary RIReEERLF5E (33,703)

The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with
approximately HK$49,221,000 paid during the year and the remaining unpaid
balance of approximately HK$4,648,000 was included in other payables at the
balance sheet date.

During the year, the Group further injected cash of approximately HK$40,800,000
million into STQ subsequent to its acquisition, whereby the Group’s equity interest
in STQ was increased to 81.18% after such capital injection.

Since its acquisition, STQ contributed approximately HK$27,411,000 to the Group’s
consolidated turnover and reduced the consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent for the year ended 31 March 2006 by approximately
HK$34,000. There would be no material changes in the Group’s consolidated
turnover and consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent for the
year should the above acquisition has been taken place on 1 April 2005.

g =TE 7 BE B (B 405 149,221, 000 T EARFEA
LIRS 5 R RITRREEX B 4,648,000t B E
BEREEA AL MERFIE

REZBER 2 FE AEEBREBHEFIEESH
75 %40,800,0007T HEE B A EER BT 2 IRAE
FRIBNNZES1.18% °

BRBESEEUAR REE_ZTF=A=1— Eut
FE BRTANEEERMZGAEEBRRIE
AR FEIG AR A w5 B4 E 27,411 ,00075&,%@%
34 0007T fR& L ETEN — ST AEWA —H
Zﬁﬁlﬂﬁiﬁz%?\é%%%ﬁ&@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁg
fﬁ%émﬂh?ﬁﬁik
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35. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (cont’d)

(@ Acquisition of a subsidiary (cont’d)

Included in the goodwill of HK$28,265,000 recognised above can be attributable
to the anticipated profitability of the acquired business and the anticipated future
operating synergies from the combination.

(b) Acquisition of minority interests

35. rEHERBRMEE (B)
@ WE—FEMEAR (&)

N HERET ARSER 2 B #08,265,0007T 0 T A FTUL
B TS 2 TAHARIFIRE ) R TS B 2 TBHAAR R & B

RIK & ©

(b) WEEDBIIRRES

2006 2005
S —TTag
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT

Net assets acquired: Pk g 2 & EFE:
Minority interests DR RS - 207

Satisfied by: XN

Cash He - 207

150

(c) Major non-cash transaction

During the year, the non-cash capital contribution made by the Group into a jointly-
controlled entity was in the form of an intangible asset valued at approximately
HK$21,400,000.
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36. Contingent Liabilities
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

36. HAEE
REEBBEREER WARPBEREREBEHE 2 HAE
(E U

Group Company
ARW EYS
2006 2005 2006 2005
S —TTaf S —TERf
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT BET T BT T
Bills discounted with recourse BB REZ AR TIE - 279,417 = =
Guarantees given BB AR
for banking facilities EfFEAZRITEE
utilised by subsidiaries R R - - 2,389,977 1,435,218
Guarantees given to suppliers  AKTEB A RIRE
for subsidiaries TR 2 R - - 143,637 295,628
- 279,417 2,533,614 1,730,846

37. Operating Lease Arrangements

(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the financial statements)
under operating lease arrangements, with lease negotiated for terms of two years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenant to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 March 20086, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables under a
non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant falling due as follows:

37. KREHERH

(a) 1EREHBEA
REBERBLCEHERLAEREYE (M EHER
MisE16) - P e AV HIE AR F RGBT S
KPP ZAHRTE S - W5 B8R & AR 5K & BF i L B 2
Fileas

RZBERF=ZA=1—H REAFEREESZE
AT DA EH 2 A R A AR B B U 2 R 2R
BIERE MR T:

Group
AEE
2006 2005
S L —TEHs
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT T
Within one year —FR 15,987 =
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEFRF (BEEERT) 14,742 -
30,729 -

NS F3R 05/06

151




Notes to Financial Statements Bt # ¥ & [} &

31 March 2006
—EERE=A=+—H

37. Operating Lease Arrangements (cont’d) . RERETHE (&)

(b) As lessee (b) ERFEMBEA

The Group leases certain of its office properties and warehouses under operating $%I$EF£‘“%?HET§EF?H EEHETHAEMELE
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from BB EYEANBRAAT NEAZTF-

six months to ten years.
REZZAFZA=+—H BRERT TR &
At 31 March 20086, the Group and the Company had total future minimum lease B NEERAQBEBAT NS 2 A RKERE

payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: AT
Group Company
REE KA
2006 2005 2006 2005
—BBARF —TTLF —BBAREF i
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT IT BT BT
Within one year —FNR 50,628 36,004 1,711 1,613
In the second to fifth years, E_FEERF
inclusive (BEEREME) 44,281 55,626 2,853 -
After five years AFE 10,511 12,585 - -
105,420 104,215 4,564 1,613
38. Commitments 38. i
At 31 March 20086, the Group and the Company did not have any significant KRBT XREZA=+—B AEBRAQRLET
capital commitments. fAIEREANFSE-
Group Company
TEE P NG|
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EBEREF —TTAHEF —EEREF —TTRHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ¥ T BT T BT

Contracted, but not provided for: & 5T #J{E R34 -
Buildings B - 152,925 - -
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39. Related Party Transactions 39. EEEALRS

() Transactions with related parties: () HEHBEEEALZRS:

In addition to those transactions and balances presented elsewhere in the financial BRI IRR E M BT EI 2 R ER B RGN AN
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with related parties SERAFEEANTERZBREATZS:

during the year:

Group
AEE
2006 2005
S N —TTns
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B e BET T BT T
Lenovo Group Limited and its subsidiaries, AR AIERRIRR 2 B AR
the subsidiaries of the Company’s B E AR A A
controlling shareholder: REMBATR:
Sale of goods by the Group REEHEEZED 0] 14,065 16,825
Purchases of goods by the Group REEBEZEY (ii) 1,054,982 4,145
Rental expenses paid by the Group REELZFzHEE (iii) - 370
Right Lane Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary ARRERBR 2 2EHE
of the Company’s controlling shareholder: MB AR FERAERAR:
Rental expenses paid by the Group AEEYfFzHE (iii) 360 360
GE Capital Mauritius Equity Investment, 1 SR 3 PR BN 2 AR R
a shareholder of DGT, GE Capital Mauritius Equity
and its subsidiaries: Investment & E 18 A 7] :
Provision of IT services by the Group REERHEEAR RS (iv) 10,559 6,651
TIS Inc., a shareholder of DGT, N S 8 P R A 2 AR AR -
and its subsidiaries: TIS Inc. R HHTB AR
Provision of [T services by the Group AEEREENBHRE (iv) 31,221 24,631
Digital China Management Systems (BVI) Limited 7N 2 Bt & /2 7] Digital China
and its subsidiaries, Management Systems
associates of the Group: (BVI) Limited & E£Fff B A7) :
Sale of goods and provision of IT services AEBHEZEMR
by the Group R E AR R IRT @), (v) 2,631 973
Purchases of goods by the Group and AEEBE 2EYMRA
provision of IT services to the Group REEREEARERSE (i), (v) 4,512 6,469
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39. Related Party Transactions (cont’d)
(I)  Transactions with related parties: (cont’d)

39. AREALRS (B)
() BEBEESEALZRS: (B)

154

Group
AEE
2006 2005
—EERE —ZTThHEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B BT BT T
Nanjing Mercuries DC Financial Systems Ltd., AEEZBE AR /RN S
an associate of the Group: —EEEERKBEERAR:
Sale of goods by the Group REBEHEZEY i) = 889
Purchases of goods by the Group rEEBEZE (ii) 39,568 37,890
Digital China System Access Software Ltd., REE 2 HREZEH R
a jointly-controlled entity of the Group: fe I SRS B BB BR AR :
Sale of goods by the Group REEHEEZEY 0] 636 -
Notes: B3 :
()  The sales were made with reference to the listed prices and conditions offered to the major () ZHEHEEDRBEASEREFERFRMEZEERIEEM
customers of the Group. #EITe
(i)  The purchases were made at prices mutually agreed between the Group and the (iy ZEBEDRBAEEZFEEBEER AREEEBRGRHE
corresponding related parties with reference to the pricing policies of the Group. ANTEFHE 2 ERET
(i)  The rental expenses were determined at rates mutually agreed between the Group and the (i) ERTRBAS B EAGREE MEA TIRERMEAELER
corresponding related parties with reference to the prevailing market reference. RESHE2HBE.
(iv)  The prices for provision of IT services were determined at rates mutually agreed between the (iv) RHEEMRHRBRBZEBRDIREBERSEEBBEREALT
Group and the corresponding related parties. 75 10 E i & E

Digital China Annual Report 05/06




39. Related Party Transactions (cont'd) 39. BRAEALTRZS (8)

(I) Outstanding balances with related parties: (1) EEEEEGS ZEREE:

(@) Details of the Group’s trade balances with the subsidiaries of the Company’s (a) REERBRAER ANEEBEAQRHERRE
controlling shareholder, a jointly-controlled entity and associates as at the 2B AE) —HEREH SERBE AR E
balance sheet date are included in notes 28 and 30 to the financial statements. DEERR 2 FHBE AN iR M 528 )30 ©

(o) Details of the Group’s trade balances with related companies as at the balance b) REEBGBEREER AEBHEGEEARZE
sheet date are included in note 28 to the financial statements. In addition, at DI SHE BN A SR MI7E28 o Lo B
31 March 2006, the amounts due from the related companies included in the —EERFZA=t+—H EUWEBREARKE
Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables of approximately BREASEENFIE Fe MEMEWTIE €
HK$26,310,000 (2005: Nil). REX)/5%26,310,0007T (Z T HF ) °

(c) Details of the Group’s amounts due from and to associates as at the balance ) REEBRREER AEERKZEMNEE R

sheet date are included in note 23 to the financial statements.

BIFORZ FHBEIN A A2

() Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: () REBEEEEEAS Z3RE:
2006 2005
—gAE —TTEs
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Short term employee benefits HEHEEEA 20,481 16,446
Post-employment benefits BB 12 1R 82 175
Share-based payments RN AT 3,508 5,970

Total compensation paid to key SNGEEEEBAEY

management personnel B FE 24,071 22,591

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial EREEMNE 2 & — TH BRI EREM O ©

statements.
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments, comprise interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s capital expenditure and
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group also enters into a forward contract to manage the currency risk arising
from its operations and sources of finances.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are cash flow interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Group’s borrowings with a floating interest rate. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2006, approximately HK$224,607,000 (2005: Nil) of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transitional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from sales
or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency, where the revenue and interest-bearing borrowings are predominately
in US$ and RMB.

During the year, the Company entered into forward contracts, which do not qualify

for hedging accounting, to manage its risk associated with foreign currency
fluctuations.
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40. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties, there
is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and other
available sources of finances. In addition, banking facilities have been put in place
for contingency purposes.

41. Comparative Amounts

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial statements, due to the
adoption of new HKFRSs during the current year, the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial statements have been
revised to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year and
opening balance adjustments have been made and certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified and restated to conform with the current year’s presentation
and accounting treatment.

42. Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 12 July 2006.
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